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10383 AUTOMALL PARKWAY P.O. BOX 65191 
0'\ BERYl LLE, MISSISSIPPI 39540-6519. 

228-392-7966 FAX: 228-392-9723 

June 3, 2014 

Mayor and City Council 
City of D'Ibverville, Mississippi 

MAYOR: RusTY QyAVE 
CITY MANAGER: BOBBY ELEUTERIUS 

COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
RANDALL PELOUS. WARD 1 
HENRY TONCREY JR.. WARD 2 
CRAIG uBOOTS" DIAZ. WARD 3 
ROBBY ELLIS. WARD 4 
JOEY BOSARGE. COUNCILMAN-AT-LARGE 

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of D'Iberville for the 

L fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. The Administration of the City of D'Iberville is responsible for 
the information presented in this report. We believe the accompanying information is accurate and 
complete and fairly presents the financial position of the municipal government of the City of D'Iberville 
as of September 30, 2013 and results of operations for the fiscal year then ended. 

Control Environment 

The City's management is responsible for maintaining a system of internal controls sufficient to provide 
reasonable assurance that City assets are safeguarded from loss and that financial transactions are 
recorded timely and accurately. Reasonable assurance means that internal controls are selected or 
designed to reduce the risk of asset loss or inaccurate bookkeeping to an acceptable level, considering the 
con~traint that the cost of control should not exceed the expected benefit. Management is responsible for 
communicating the purpose and importance of internal controls to employees and for providing the 
resources necessary to establish and maintain the control system. 

Buc:fgetary Controls 

PriQr to the beginning of each fiscal year, each department director prepares a projection of expenditures 
for their department. The City's Comptroller develops a projection of revenues for all funds and a 

I 

projection of the expenditures not included in the departmental budgets. The revenue projections and 
proposed expenditures are presented to the City Manager. After reviewing the draft budget proposal, the 
City Manager meets with department directors to discuss their budget requests. Each director must justify 
their department's budget request by explaining the cost of the programs they propose for the coming 
year. When the City Manager is satisfied that the proposed budget conforms to the objectives and goals 
tha~ he has set for the coming year, the entire budget proposal is presented to the City Council. During 
the budget workshop, the Chy Council will review, discuss, and question the proposed budget and make 
modifications to it. The Council will invite public comment on the taxing and spending plan at a special 
public hearing. After determining that the revenue projections in the budget are sound and that the 
proposed spending is necessary to provide the level of services and to accomplish the program goals and 
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I 
capital improvements proposed in the budget, the City Council will adopt the budget. After adopting the 
budget for the coming year the City Council will set the property tax rate at a level that will generate the I 
property revenue necessary to raise the budgeted ad valorem tax revenue. 

IIndependent Audit 

In accordance with Section 21-35-31, Miss Code of 1972 and guidelines prescribed by the State Auditor, I
the financial statements presented herein have been audited by Wright, Ward, Hatten & Guel, PLLC an 
independent firm of Certified Public Accountants. The objective of the auditor's work is to provide the 
auditor with a basis upon which to express an opinion on the fairness of the City's financial statements. I 
The auditor's opinion is included in the Financial Section of this report. The auditor's work involves 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating I 
the overall financial statement presentation. 

IState Department of Audit regulations require the independent auditor to disclose any instance of non­
compliance with certain state laws, that may come to their attention during the audit of the City's 
financial statements. The auditor must test for non-compliance with federal requirements applicable to Ieach major federal program in which the City of D'Iberville receives federal financial assistance. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis I 
Management's . discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's report 
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A I 
complements this letter oftransmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

Profile of the City of D'Iberville I 
The City of D'Iberville, incorporated in 1988, is located within Harrison County. Located at the juncture 
of Interstate Highways 10 & 110 and MS Highway 67, D'Iberville is uniquely positioned to develop and I 
capture an even larger share ofthe gulf coast regional retail market. 

IThe City of D'Iberville has operated under the council-manager form of government since 1988. Policy­
making and legislative authority are vested in a governing council (Council) consisting of the mayor and 
five other members, all elected. The Council appoints the government's City Manager, who in turn I 
appoints the heads of the various departments. The Mayor and the five council members serve four-year 
terms. 

I 
The City of D'Iberville provides a full range of services, including fire protection, police protection, water 
& sanitation, the construction and maintenance of streets and other infrastructure, planning and zoning, 
and recreational and cultural activities. I 


I 
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Eco$omic Condition and Outlook 

The City of D'Iberville was impacted by Hurricane Katrina which hit the Mississippi Gulf Coast in 
August of 2005. This Hurricane has been described as the worst natural disaster to ever occur in the 
United States. Approximately 40% of D'Iberville residents lost their homes. 

Even eight years later, recovery from Hurricane Katrina remains the focus of City Management. 
Insurance claim proceeds and disaster assistance from the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) have allowed the City to repair and/or replace most of the City's lost assets. FEMA has 
approved project worksheets for approximately $22,000,000. As of the date of this report, all City-owned 
buildings have been repaired including City Hall. Employees moved into a three-story addition to the 
current City Hall in March 20 II. The renovation of the existing structure was completed and occupied in 
February 2013. All vehicles, traffic signals, lift stations and street signs have been repaired and/or 
replflced. The project of replacing the old grinder pumps with a new gravity system in the southeast 
comer of the City was completed in May 20 II. 

Post-storm reinvestment by the private sector has been remarkable. As of the date of this report, various 
single family and multi-family housing projects have been approved for development as well as several 
new restaurants and retail establishments in the Promenade shopping center. 

Sales tax revenue increased 49% from FY2005 to FY2006. Although there was a steady decline in sales 
tax . revenue in FY2007 through FY2009, it increased approximately 22% from FY2009 to FY20 I 0, 
largely due to the opening of the Promenade shopping center. Sales tax revenue increased modestly at a 
rate of2% from FY2011 to FY2012, but jumped up 6% from FY2012 to FY2013 . 

Over the last ten years, the northeast quadrant of the I-lOll-II 0 Commercial District has exploded with 
growth. Called the Lakewood Shopping Center, anchor tenants on the 60 acre development include: 
Wail-Mart, Lowes, and dozens of small retail businesses comprising nearly 400,000 square feet of space 
with more under various stages of permitting and construction. Lakewood Development has started a 
chain reaction of similar development in the remaining quadrants of the interchange wishing to capitalize 
on this strategic location. The first stage of development of the northwest quadrant is complete with the 
opening of the Promenade shopping center, including Target, Kohl's and many other national chain 
retailers. Target opened in October 2009, and Kohl's opened in March 2011. The southeast and 
southwest quadrants are also on the drawing board for additional retail shopping centers, services, and 
housing. Together, the four quadrants of the 1-10/1-110 Interchange represent the City's most potentially 
important retail location and development initiative. 

More and more businesses and individuals are seeking a north shore location to develop that avoids the 
congestion and direct damage than can occur on the storm prone shoreline along the Mississippi Sound. 
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Casinos are also on the horizon for the City of D'Iberville. Land Holdings I and Oyster Bay Casinos, two 
of the four sites that have been approved in D'Iberville, will soon be underway. D'Iberville has been and 
will continue to be a bedroom community, resort/gaming destination and regional retail hub. 

The Mississippi Department of Employment Security does not publish an unemployment rate for the City 
ofD'lberviIle. Since we are located in Harrison County, we feel that the County's unemployment rate is 
indicative of unemployment in our City. That rate dropped from 8.6% in September 2012 to 7.8% in 
September 2013. 

Governmental Fund Revenues 

Government funds are used to account for most City functions and operations including the various City 
departments, grants, capital projects, and the City's general obligation debt payments. Figure 1 illustrates 
the relative amounts of various general governmental revenues for the fiscal year 2013. The City's three 
largest sources of revenues for general government functions are sales tax, other intergovernmental and 
ad valorem tax. 

Licenses &. Pennits 
Ad Valorem Ta"C Other 


150 


Comt Fines &. 

Fees 


mental 
2900

,-,'--'--"-­

Governmental Funds 
Revenues FY2013 

.Licenses &. Pennits 

• Sales Tax 

- Other Inter!lovenullental 

-Chartres for Services 

• COUIt Fines &. Fees 

_Ad Valorem Tax 

-Other 

Figure 1 

Intergovernmental revenues are collected by other governmental entities such as state government and 
distributed to the City. Other Intergovernmental Revenue includes taxes collected by the State of 

Mississippi and State and federal grants. 
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Property Taxes - In Mississippi, property taxes are levied by municipalities and counties on the assessed 

value of land and buildings, mobile homes, automobiles, business inventory and equipment. Assessed 
value is a prescribed percentage oftrue (appraised) value ofeach class of property. 

Classes of property and assessment ratios are defined in Section 112 of the Mississippi Constitution of 
1890. 

Class of Property 	 Ratio 

Class I Single-family, owner-occupied, residential real 	 10% 
Class II All other real property, except Class I or Class N 	 15% 
Class III Personal property, except motor vehicles and Class N 15% 
Class IV Public Utility property 	 30% 

Class V Motor Vehicles 	 30% 

Ad valorem taxes are collected in arrears. The taxes for a calendar tax year are due by February 1 ofthe 
subsequent calendar year. Prior to the beginning of a new fiscal year, the City Council sets the tax rate .. 	 (levy) that will generate the tax revenue needed for the upcoming fiscal year. In each fiscal year, the City 

collects the ad valorem taxes for the prior calendar tax year. The governing authorities of Harrison 
County both assess and collect the ad valorem taxes for the City of D'Iberville. The County then remits 
the amount collected for the City of D'Iberville monthly. 

Sa/~s Tax - State law requires sellers of goods and services to collect and remit to the state sales taxes of 
various rates specified in its statutes. A tax rate of 7% applies to retail sales oftangible personal property. 

Of the taxes collected by the state each month, 18.5% of the sales tax revenue from activities within a 
~.... 	 mur,icipal corporation is remitted to the municipal government. 

Figure 2 illustrates the relative amount of total expenditures for each service and function accounted for in 
the City's governmental funds for the fiscal year 2013. Capital outlay, public safety, and public works are 
the largest expenditure categories ofthe City's governmental funds in FY2013. 

• 	 RECElvec 
DEC D! 20" 

.~.... 
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Governmental Funds 
Expenditures FY2013 

Debt Service 

• General !fOvenUllellt 

.Public Safety 

• Public Works 

• Economic development 

.Culture&: Recreation 

• Capital Outlay 

-Debt Service 

Figure 2 

Debt Management 

A municipality may finance its activities by incurring various forms of debt, from lease-purchase 
arrangements to long-term bpnds. General obligation debt is bonds or notes secured by the governmental 
entity's pledge to levy tax adequate to repay the debt. Limited obligation bonds are secured by the pledge 
of a defined portion of the taxing power of the municipality. Revenue bonds are secured by a pledge of 
specific revenue sources other than ad valorem taxes such as revenue from a utility system. 

Cash Management 

Mississippi laws address the investment of surplus money by municipalities and the investment of the 
proceeds of bonds separately. The investment of surplus money is limited to bonds or other direct 
obligations of the United States of America or the State of Mississippi or any county or municipality of 
this state or any school district or obHgations issued or guaranteed in full as to principal and interest by 
the United States of America which are subject to a repurchase agreement deposit with a maturity of six 
months or less. Treasury Bills are purchased by a municipal depository under a Security Safekeeping 
Agreement. 
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Major Initiatives 

During FY2013, the City expended just over $100,000 as our match on several major capital projects, 
including the widening of Central A venue. The City also spent over $16,000,000 on capital outlay 
throughout the City, including land, street paving, equipment, and vehicles. 

.. Respectfully submitted, 

Bobby E uterius, City Manager .. 
§harron Perkins, Finance Director 

• 
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.. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

\ii!i­.. Jl41e 3, 2014 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of D'iberville, Mississippi 

Report on the Financial Statements 

• 

wb have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of D'Iberville, 
M}ssissippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial 
st<j.tements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

M!lnagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmancial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
OUT audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

• the fmancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 

• 

as~essment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the fmancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 

., appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

• oUr audit opinions. 
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Opinions IIn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of D'Iberville, MisSissippi, as of September 30, 
2013, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the i 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Emphasis 0/Matter I 
As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, in 2013, the City adopted new accounting guidance, 
GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of it
Resources, and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters I 
Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's I
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 13-20 and 54-56 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such infonnation, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an Iiessential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information I 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures I 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information I 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 

comprise the City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's basic fmancial statements. The introductory section, " 

combining and individual non-major fund fmancial statements and statistical section, are presented for 

" 


I·purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. 

..Office ofManagement and Budget Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
',1,1Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic fmancial statements. 

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the Iunderlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements. Such infonnation 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the Iunderlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual non­
major fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all I 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the Iaudit of the basic fmancial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. In addition, the State of Mississippi requires municipalities submit a schedule of 
surety bonds maintained for city personnel in compliance with § 21-17-5 of Mississippi Code of 1972. I11 

.. ··..·· I 



.. 
This schedule has been presented on page 75. This schedule is the responsibility ofrnanagement and was 
derived from and related directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
finapcial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
fmancial statements or to the basic fmancial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the schedule of surety bonds is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 3, 2014, 
on our consideration of the City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control 
over fmancial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
inteinal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of D'Iberville, 
Mississippi's internal control over fmancial reporting and compliance. 

Other Reporting Required by State ofMississippi,
• 	 In accordance with the State of Mississippi, we have also issued our report dated June 3, 2014, on our 

consideration of the City of D'Iberville's compliance with state laws and regulations. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal controls over compliance with state laws and 
regulations and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal controls or compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with state guidelines in considering the 
City ofD'Iberville's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Wright, Ward, Hatten & GueI, PLLC 

Gulfport, Mississippi 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


Introduction 


The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of the City of D'Iberville's ("the City") 
activities and fmancial perfonnance provides an introduction to the financial statements of the 
City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. The information contained in this 
Management's Discussion and Analysis has been prepared by management and should be 
considered in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto, which follow this 
section. 

The components of the annual financial report include: 

• 	 Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 
• 	 Basic Financial Statements 
• 	 Required Supplementary Information (RSI) 

The MD&A, a component of RSI, introduces the basic financial statements and provides an 
analytical overview of the City's financial activities. This MD&A provides comparisons with the 
,previous year. 

Financial Highlights 

• 	 The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at September 30, 2013 by $52,071,423. Of 
this amount unrestricted net position of $9,283,638 may be used to meet organizations 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

• 	 The total net position increased by $4,014,720, which includes a prior period adjustment 
of ($890,270). Of this amount an increase of $3,915,574 was associated with 
governmental activities and an increase of $99, 146 with business~type activities. 

• 	 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of$9,120,701, an increase of $953,423 , which includes a 
prior period adjustment in the amount of($181 ,976) in comparison with the prior year. 

• 	 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was 
$7,867,755 or 67% oftotal general fund expenditures. 

Overview ofthe Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of D'Iberville's 
basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements themselves. 

RECEIVED 

DEC 0 5 20'~ 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI I 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Overview ofthe Financial Statements (Continued) 

Government-Wide Financial Statements I 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview 
of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. I 
The statement ofnet position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving 
or deteriorating. -
The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed I 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in I
cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are Iprincipally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include 
general government, public safety, public works, economic development, and culture and I 
recreation. The major business-type activities of the City include providing water and sewer 
services to the residents of the City ofD'Iberville. I 
The government-wide fmancia! statements can be found on pages 21··22 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements I 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local I
governments, uses fund accounting not only to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements but also to help control and manage money for particular purposes or 
to show it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money. All of Ithe funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary 
funds. 

I• Governmental funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 

governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, tmlike 
 I 
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus 

on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resoUrces, as well as on balances of 

spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
 I 
useful in evaluating a government's near term financing requirements. 

I 

I 

I 
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CITY OF D'mERVll.LE, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 


Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued) 

The City maintains fourteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, 
CDBG Grant Fund and the Promenade TIF Fund, which are considered major funds, and 
the other governmental funds for the purpose of consistency. 

The City adopts an annual budget for all of its fund groups. Budgetary comparison 
statements and schedules have been provided to demonstrate compliance with the budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-26 of this 
report. 

• Proprietary Fund 

The City maintains two proprietary or enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City maintains two enterprise funds. Information is presented 
in the proprietary statement of net position and the proprietary statement of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position for the water and sewer and the waterfront 
development funds. 

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27-29 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to the full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. Refer 
to Note 1 in the financial statements for more detailed information on the elements of the 
financial statements. 

Other InfOrmation 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain other supplementary information. The budget comparison for the general fund and the 
CDBG grant fund are presented immediately after the basic financial statements as required 
supplementary information. All other fund group budget schedules are presented in the 
supplernentary section ofthis report. 

15 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 


Government-wide Condensed Data Financial Analysis 

City of D'Iberville's Net Position 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Current and other assets $ 13,966,531 $ 10,625,842 $ 4,454,059 $ 3,948,229 
Noncurrent assets 51,638,191 37,525,130 22,7921952 23,488,297 

I 

I 

I 


Total I 
2013 2012 

$ 18,420,590 $ 14,574,071 I 
74,431,143 61,013,427 

Total assets 65,604,722 48,150,972 27,247,011 27,436,526 92,851,733 75,587,498 I 
Other liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

6,679,848 
24,891,931 
31,571,779 

3,991,099 
14,042,504 
18,033,603 

1,769,257 
7,439,274 
9,208,531 

1,395,241 
8,101,951 
9,497,192 

8,449,105 
32,331,205 
40,780,310 

5,386,340 
22,144,455 
27,530,795 I 

Net position: 
Net investment in I 

capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

27,113,673 
34,345 

6,884,925 

23,552,829 
13 

6,564,527 

15,068,711 
571,056 

2,398,713 

]4,468,775 
712,083 

2z758,476 

42,182,384 
605,401 

9,283,638 

38,021,604 
712,096 

9,323,003 
I 

Total net pes ition $ 34,032,943 $ 30,117,369 $ 18,038,480 $ 17,939,334 $ 52,071,423 $ 48,056,703 I 
I 
j 

I 
J 
I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
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17 CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI II 

L 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Government-wide Condensed Data Financial Analysis (Continued) 

~k City of D'iberville's Changes in Net Position • Governmental Business-type 
~, 

!:0 Activities Activities Total 
It 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 

Revenues 
~-.. 
~ 
" lilt 

Progrltm revenues 
Charges for services 
Op¢rating grants 
Capital grants 

Total program revenues 

$ 1,581,184 
2,725,906 
4,718,631 

9,025,721 

$ 1,644,002 
625,290 

5.557,628 

7,826,920 

$ 3,795,664 

106,123 

3,901,787 

$ 3,657,221 
73,728 

3,730,949 

$ 5,376,848 
2,725,906 
4,824,754 

12,927,508 

$ 5,301,223 
699,018 

5.557,628 

11,557,869 
S:; 

L. 
General revenues 

Prqperty taxes 2,838,888 2,739,560 36,790 31,679 2,875,678 2,771,239 
Sales taxes 5,960,425 5,728,228 5,960,425 5,728,228 

1;\ ~ 
,",.. Franchise taxes 

Other 

330,753 

550J48 

319,186 

2,613J27 5,479 34,579 
330,753 
555,727 

319,186 
2,647,906 

:,;;'• 
Total general revenues 

Total revenues 

Program expenditures 

9,680J14 

18,706,035 

11,400,301 

19J27J21 

42J69 

3,944,056 

66J58 

3,797J07 

9,722,583 

222650,091 

11,466,559 

23,024,428 

",'
}"j, a. 

General government 
Pub~ safety 

2,894,304 
4,333,026 

2,636,424 
4,038,219 

2,894,304 
4,333,026 

2,636,424 
4,038,219 

Public works 4,597,636 2,821,096 4,597,636 2,821,096 
,3,_ 

~~: 

It 
Economic development 
CultUre and recreation 

966,759 
500,332 

491,902 
670,948 

966,759 
500,332 

491,902 
670,948 

Interest 903,741 681,159 903,741 681,159 
~k 
,c';.. Waterfront Development 

Water and sewer 
221,874 

3,327,429 
185,511 

3,078,738 
221,874 

3,327,429 
185,511 

3,078,738 

;;;'.;
t;­

I. 
Total program expenditures 

Change before transfers 
Transfers 

14,195,798 

4,510,237 
11J39,748 

7,887,473 
(212,172) 

3,549,203 

394,753 
3J64J49 

532,958 
212,172 

17,745,101 

4,904,990 

14,603,297 

8,420,431 

Chang~ in net JX>Sition 4,510.237 7.675,201 394,753 745,130 4,904,990 8,420,431
it Begimrlng net JX>Sition 30,117,369 22,692,767 17,939,334 17,194,204 48,056,703 39,886,971 

Prior period adjustments (594,g63} (250,699) (295,607) (890,270) (250,699) 
~:\ 
~:'[ Beginning net jX)sition, restated 29.522J06 22,442,068 17.643,727 17.194J04 47,166,433 39,636J72... 

Ending net position $ 34032 943 $ 30.117369 $ 18,038.480 $17,939334 $ 52,071,423 $ 48.056,703 

Ii. 
At September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012 the City's assets exceeded liabilities by 

:\ 
$52,071,423 and $48,056,703 respectively, The largest portion of the City's total net position 

]f reflects its investment in capital assets, less any related debt used to acquire or construct those 
lflii 

assets, That amount increased in 2013 by $4,160,780 to $42,182,384. 

~.. 17 

L 



CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI I 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

I
Government-wide Condensed Data Financial Analysis (Continued) 

Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be Inoted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided for from other sources, since 
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

IThe remaining portion of net position is unrestricted, which can be used to finance government 
operations, and is at a strong 52% of total expenditures for 2013. It should also be noted that the 
City is able to report positive balances in both categories ofnet position, both for the government 
as a whole, as well as its separate governmental and business-type activities. I 
Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds I 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
fmance-related legal requirements. 

I 
Governmental Funds 

<,·< 

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
(!1outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's 

financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of 
a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of the close 
of the fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of 
$9,120,701, an increase of $953,423 which includes a prior period adjustment in the amount of 
($181,976) in comparison with the prior year. Eighty-six (86) percent or $7,797,13 8 of this 
combined total is unassigned, while $1,289,218 is restricted for capital projects and $34,345 is 
restricted for unemployment. 

• General Fund 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. As a measure of the general 

fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare the unreserved fund balance to total fund 

expenditures. At the end of 2013 the general fund unassigned fund balance represents a 
 -strong 67 percent oftotal general fund expenditures. 

I 
• CDBG Grant Fund 

This fund is used by the City to account for all of the Community Development Block IGrant funds that is received by the <City through the Mississippi Development Authority 

to fund the rebuilding and other capital related projects of the City from Hurricane 

Katrina. The operating transfers into this fund totaling $101,206 from other funds 

represent the portion ofthe project costs that is the City's match. 
 I 

• Promenade TIP Fund I 
This fund is used by the City to account for all of the revenue and related expenditures of 

the tax increment financing issued for the Promenade retail developments. 
 I 

I18 
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CITY OF D'ffiERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 


Financial Analysis ofthe Government's Fnnds (Continued) 

• Non-major Funds 

These are special revenue funds made up of various reimbursable grants that do not 
maintain any fund balances. The operating transfers into the funds totaling $2,093,573 
from the general fund represent the portion of the project costs that is the City's match as 
well as debt service transfers for principal and interest payments on the outstanding debt. 

Proprietary Funds 

The Water & Sewer fund had an increase in net position totaling $208,311, which includes a prior 
period adjustment in the amount of ($295,607) at the end of FY2013 and the Waterfront 
Development fund had a decrease of $109,165 for the year resulting in a net increase in 
.proprietary funds of$99,146 for the year ended September 30,2013. 

Budget Variances in the General Fund 

Amendments to the original budget increased total appropriations by $923,452 and were a result 
of an increase in other services and charges in the general government category, along with an 
increased need for personnel, capital purchases, supplies, and other services and charges in public 
safety during the 2013 fiscal year; however, actual expenditures were still under budget by 
$1,235,982 at year end, as a result of a conservative fiscal management plan. Refer to the 
. budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund on page 54 in the RSI section of the annual 
report. 

Capital Asset and Long-Term Debt Activity 

I Capital Asset Activity 

At September 30, 2013, the City reported $51,638,191 in net capital assets for governmental 
activities and $22,792,877 in capital assets for business-type activities. Additional information on 
the City of D'Iberville's capital assets can be found in Note 6: Capital Assets on pages 40-42 of 
this report. 

City ofD'IberviIle's Capital Assets 
(net ofdepreciation) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 


Land $18,576,281 $ 7,025,305 $ 321,080 $ 321,080 $18,897,361 $ 7,346,385 
Buildings & Improvements 13,057,842 7,039,087 2,203,840 2,322,217 15,261,682 9,361,304 
Machinery, Equipment & Vehicles 1,596,910 1,815,713 78,740 38,319 1,675,650 1,854,032 

Infrastructure & Systems 10,975,807 9,243,211 19,734,674 20,077,956 30,710,481 29,321,167 
ConstrUction in progress 7,431,351 12,090,455 454,543 433,043 7,885,894 12,523,498 

Total $51,638,191 $37,213,771 $22,792,877 $23,192,615 $74,431,068 $60,406,386 

19 




I ·CITY OF D'ffiERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

I
Capital Asset and Long-Term Debt ActIvity (Continued) 

Long-Term Debt Activity I 
At the end of the cmrent fiscal year, the City had $34,311,188 in outstanding debt excluding 
compensated absences. Additional information on the City of D'Iberville's long-term debt can be 
found in Note 7: Long-Term Debt on pages 43-47 of this report. 

City ofD'lberviIle's Outstanding Debt 
General Obligation, Revenue Bonds and Other Loans 

Governmental Busmess-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 

I
Tax Increment Bonds $ 17,160,000 $ 5,880,000 $ $ $ 17,160,000 $ 5,880,000 
Revenue Bonds 6,530,000 6,955,000 6,530,000 6,955,000 
General Obligation Bond 3,395,000 3,605,000 3,395,000 3,605,000 I 
Special Obligation Bond 3,850,000 4,000,000 3,850,000 4,000,000 
Notes Payable 1,281,462 1,281,462 1,475,187 1,696,860 2,756,649 2,978,322 
Leases Payable 119,518 175,942 119,518 175,942 I 

25,805,980 14,942,404 8z005,187 8,651,860 33,811,167 23,594,264 
Less: Bond discount 23,958 25,298 23,958 25,298 I.Add: Bond premium 456,437 67,542 71,978 523,979 71,978 

Total $ 26,238,459 $ 14,917,106 $ 8,072,729 $ 8,723,838 $ 34,311,188 $ 23,640,944 

IContact the City's Financial Management 

Questions about this report or requests for additional fmancial information may be addressed to: 

Sharron Perkins, Comptroller 

City of D'Iberville, Mississippi 

P.O. Box 6519 

D'Iberville, MS 39540 


I 
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EXHIBIT A 
« 

f,,':.. CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

-; SEPTEMBER 30, 1013 

~ 
Governmental Business-Type 

t"u 
~~o.. ASSETS 

Activities Activities Total 

Current Assets 
Cash $ 9,499,039 S 2,714,875 $ 12,213,914 
Receivables 1,427,422 538,199 1,965,621 

tit Due from other governments 3,005,725 30,898 3,036,623 
Restricted assets: 

~) 
~.. Cash and cash equivalents 

Total current assets 

34,345 

13,966,531 

1!170,087 

4,454,059 

1,204,432 

18,420,590 

Noncurrent Assets .. Capital assets: 
Land and construction in progress 26,007,632 775,623 26,783,255 
Other capital assets, net of 

~.. accumulated depreciation 
Deposits 

25,630,559 22,017,254 
75 

47,647,813 
75 

Total noncurrent assets 22,792,952 74,431,143 

';0-,.. Total assets 27,247,011 92,851,733 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

-t-:' 

lit 
Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 

3,335,444 
63,424 

491,429 3,826,873 
63,424 

Accrued interest 408,347 139,614 547,961 .. Sales tax payable 
Accrued wages payable 120,202 

2,700 
10,491 

2,700 
130,693 

Unearned revenue 1,098,811 1,098,811 

,,;.. Bonds payable 
Notes payable 

1,595,000 435,000 
230,606 

2,030,000 
230,606 

Leases payable 58,620 58,620 
Payable from restricted assets: .. Customer deposits 

Total current liabilities 6,679,848 

459,417 

1,769,257 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

• Bonds payable 
Notes payable 

22,810,000 
1,281,462 

6,095,000 
1,244,581 

28,905,000 
2,526,043 

",'" 
Leases payable 60,898 60,898 

c'• Bond premiums 
Bond discounts 

456,437 
(23,958) 

67,542 523,979 
(23,958) 

Compensated absences 307,092 32,151 

,~.. Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 31,571,779 

7,439,274 

9,208,531 

32,331,205 

40,780,310 

.. NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 27,113,673 15,068,711 42,182,384 
Restricted 34,345 571,056 605,401 
Unrestricted 6,884,925 2,398,713 .. Total net position $ 34,032,943 $ 18,038,480 $ 52,071,423 

~<.. 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements. 
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EXHIBITB 

CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Net (Elpenses) Revenue and 
Pr!K!am Revenues Changes in Net Assets 

Cbarges Operating Capital Business-
for Grants and Grants and Governmental Type 

E:lpenses Services Contributions Contributions Adivities Activities Total 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 2,894,304 $ $ 13,368 $ 216,970 $ (2,663,966) $ $ (2,663,966) 
Public safety 4,333,026 870,924 409,084 102,708 (2,950,310) (2,950,310) 
Public works 4,597,636 343,914 59,779 4,074,959 (118,984) (118,984) 
Economic development 966,759 342,811 2,243,675 1,619,727 1,619,727 
Culture and recreation 500,332 23,535 323,994 (152,803) (152,803) 
Interest 903,741 {903,74I) (903,741) 

Total governmental 

activities 14,195,798 1,581,184 {5,170,O77) (5,170,077) 

Business-type activities: 
Water and sewer 3,327,429 3,789,078 461,649 461,649 
Waterfront Development 221,874 6,586 (109,165) {l09,165) 

Total business - type 

activities 3,549,303 3,795,664 106,123 352,484 352,484 

Total $ 17~ $ 5,376,848 $ 2,725,906 $ 4,824,754 $ 352,484 $ (4,817,593) 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 2,838,888 36,790 2,875,678 
Sales taxes 5,960,425 5,960,425 

Franchise taxes 330,753 330,753 
Interest earnings 44,735 73 44,808 

Insurance proceeds 35,385 35,385 
Lease revenues 112,545 112,545 
Other 357,583 362,989 

Total general revenues and transfers 9,680,314 42,269 9,722,583 

Change in net position 4,510,237 394,753 4,904,990 

Net position - beginning ofyear 30,117,369 17,939,334 48,056,703 
Prior period adjustment (594,663) {295,607) (890,270) 

Net position beginning ofyear, restated 29,522,706 17,643,727 47,166,433 

Net position - end of year $ 34,032,943 $ 18,038,480 .$ 52,071,423 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements. 
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EXHIBITC 

., 
CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 


BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
.. SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


Non-major Total 
General CDBG Promenade Governmental Governmental 

Grant Fund TIF Fund Funds 
Current Assets 
Cash $ 8,215,813 $ 7,676 $ 962,181 $ 347,714 $ 9,533,384.. Receivables: 

Property tax 20,914 20,914 
Sal¢s taxes 946,670 946,670 

t<~, 

., 

?, Franchise taxes 114,772 114,772 
Grant receivable 199,250 2,439,194 367,281 3,005,725 
Garbage fees 109,832 109,832 
CotITt fines & fees 227,949 227,949 

;-, Other receivable 3,885 3,400 7,285 
Due from other funds 108,344 

Total current assets $ 9,947,429 $ 2,446,870 $ 965,581 $ 714,995 $ 14,074,875 

.. 

-/!­ Liabilities and Fund Balance.. 
Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 677,419 $ 2,370,829 $ $ 287,196 $ 3,335,444 

c Retam.age payable 52,000 11,424 63,424.. 
Accrued wages payable 120,202 120,202 
Unearned revenue 1,247,708 7,676 71,376 1,326,760 
Due 10 other funds 108,344 108,344 

ilia Total liabilities 2,430,505 478,340 ---±t~4, 174 

~L 
till 

.. 
Fun~ Balance 
Restriced for unemployment 
Restricted for capital projects 
Unas~igned 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 

34,345 

9,947,429 $ 

16,365 

16,365 

2,446,870 $ 

965,581 

965,581 

965,581 $ 

307,272 
{70,617) 

236,655 

714,995 

34,345 
1,289,218 
7,797,138 

9,120,701 

$ 14,074,875 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements. 
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------------------- .. 

I EXHIBITC-l 

CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Total governmental funds balance (Exhibit c) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
position are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in 

the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their 

estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 


Governmental capital assets 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period 

expenditures and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. 


Outstanding debt issues 

Compensated absences 

Other long term assets are not available to payor current period 

expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. 


Accrued interest not due and payable in the current period expenditures 

and, therefore, not reported in the funds. 


Governmental funds report the effect of discounts, premiums, and similar 

items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 

amortized in the statement of activities. 


Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A) 

I 
I 

I 

I 


$ 9,120,701 

63,902,865 
(12,264,674) 51,638,191 I 


I 

(25,805,980) 

(307,092) 

227,949 I 
(408,347) I 
(432,479) I 

$ 34,032,943 

I 

I 

I 


I 

I 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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EXHIBITD .. CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF REVENEUS, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
.. FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

k, 
Non-major Total 

ip General CDBG Promenade Governmental Governmental.. 
Fund Grant Fund TIFFund Funds Funds 

Revllnues 
Taxes:.. Property $ 2,838,888 $ $ $ $ 2,838,888 

Sales 5,960,425 5,960,425 
franchise 330,753 330,753 

" Licen~es and permits 321,498 321,498 
p,..j.' 

Intergovernmental 3,067,517 2,801,947 1,596,386 7,465,850 
C1iarges for services 396,383 396,383 
Fines and forfeits 774,394 774,394 
Interest income 44,520 215 44,735 

;;' Lease revenue 134,280 134,280.. 
Miscellaneous 112,949 112,949 

Total revenues ~,981,607 2,801,947 1,596,601 18,380,155 

~, 

Expenditures 

.. 

Curr,nt: 


Gqneral government 2,670,504 2,670,504 

Public safety 3,812,828 197,209 4,010,037 


.. 
Public works 1,444,781 2,420,280 3,865,061 
Ecpnomic development 229,503 85,535 500,500 148,257 963,795 
Culture and recreation 393,878 393,878 
Capital outlay 3,138,916 380,973 11,002,060 1,529,287 16,051,236 
Debt service: 

Principal 1,136,424 1,136,424 
lnterest 901,869 901,869 

'if' Total expenditures 11,690,410 2,886,788 11,502,560 3,913,046 29,992,804.. 
Exce$s (deficiency) of revenues 

;2" ­over expenditures 2,291,197 (84,841) (11,502,560) (2,316,445) (11,612,649) 

it 
Other rmancing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 101,206 2,093,573 2,194,779 
Transfers out (2,189,484) (5,295) (2,194,779).. Proceeds from bond issuance 12,468,141 12,468,141 
Proceeds from sale ofassets 244,522 244,522 
Insurance proceeds 35,385 35,385 

~~ .. 
 Total other financing sources (uses) {1,909,577) 12,468,141 2,088,278 12,748,048 


Net change in fund balance 381,620 16,365 965,581 (228,167) 1,135,399 

"~~'i' Hund balance - October 1 7,702,456 464,822 8,167,278 
l!rior period adjustment (181,976) {181,976) 

Fund balance· October I, restated 7,520,480 464,822 7,985,302 

Fund balance - September 30 $ 7 902,100 $ 16,365 $ 965,581 $ 236,655 $ 9,120,701 

.. 
r~~.. z

7 
;;,.. 
i£.. 
.l; 
~.. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these flnancial statements. 
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EXHIBIT D~l I 
CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 


RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 I 

TO THE STATEMENTOF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

I 
Net change In fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit D) s 1,135,399 

IAmounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the I 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 


I 
Capital outlay $ 16,051,236 

Depreciation (1,284,139) 14,767,097 


Proceeds from the sale of capital assets are recorded as other sources of income 

in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, 

however, these proceeds are offset by disposal of assets to show gains or losses 

from the sale ofcapital assets in the Statement ofActivities. (34,075) 


The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to 

governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt 
 I 
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither 

transaction, however has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds 

report the effect of issuance cost, premiums, discounts and similar items when 
 I
debt is firtst issued, whereas the amounts are deferred and amortized in the 

statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of those differences in the 

treatment oflong-term debt and related ittems. 
 I 

Debt retirement 1,136,424 


Debt issuance (12,000,000) 


Bond premium (468,141) 


Bond discount amortization (1,340) 


Bond premiums amortization (11,321,353) 
 I 
Fine revenue recognizedon the modified accrual basis in the funds during the Icurrent year is reduced because prior year recogniztion would have been required 

on the Statement ofActivities under the full accrual basis of accounting. 45,973 

I 
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 

current financial resources, and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 

governmental funds. 
 I 

Accrued Interest payable (12,236) 

Compensated absences __--->.(7,0,568) 
 I 

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit B) ;;.$__...;4.,5;.;;1~O.:;,2~3.;..7 

I 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmandal statements. 
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EXHmITE .. CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

.. 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 


PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


Waterfront 
~:, Water & Development.. Sewer Fund Fund Total 

ASSETS 
Current Asset'i 
Cash $ 2,697,510 $ 17,365 $ 2,714,875... 

.. 
Accounts receivable, net 536,639 1,560 538,199 
Grant receivable 2,348 28,550 30,898 

Total unrestricted current assets 3,236,497 47,475 3,283,972 

Current Restricted Assets 
Cash 1,170,087.. Total restricted assets 1,170,087 

Total current assets 4,404,332 4,454,059 

Noncurrent Assetsi.. 

.. 
Land 33,880 287,200 321,080 
Construction in Process 433,043 21,500 454,543 
Buildings 140,470 140,470 
Machinery and equipment 278,607 278,607 
Boat slips and pier 3,254,052 3,254,052 
Water and Sewer system 28,384,068 28,384,068 .. 
 29,270,068 3.562,752 32,832,820 


Less: accumulated depreciation 8.9271928 1,112,015 10,039,943 

Net property, plant ~d equipment 20,342,140 2,450,737 22,792,877 
Deposits 75 75 

Total noncurrent assets 20,342,215 2145°1737 22,792,952 

Total assets 24,746,547 2,500,464 27,247,011 

1, LIABILITIES.. 
Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 482,760 8,669 491,429 
Accrued interest 139,614 139,614 

.. 

., Sales tax payable 2,606 94 2,700 
Wages payable 10,491 10,491 
Bonds payable 435,000 435,000 
Notes payable 230,606 230,606 
Customer deposits 459,417 

Total current liabilities 1,758,242 1,769,257 

.. Noncurrent Liabilities 
Bonds payable 6,095,000 6,095,000 
Notes payable 1,244,581 1,244,581 
Bond premium 67,542 67,542.. Compensated absences 321151 32,151 

Total noncurrent liabilities 7,439,274 7,439,274 

Total liabilities 9,197,516 11,015 9,208,531 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 12,617,974 2,450,737 15,068,711 

f' 
Restricted 571,056 571,056 

fit Unrestricted 2,36°1001 38,712 2,398,713... 
Total net position $ 15,549,031 $ 2,489,449 $ 18,038,480 

.. 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmandal statements. 

'­
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EXHIBITF 

CITY OF D'IBERVILLE. MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 


PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1013 
 I 

Waterfront 
Water & Development I 

Sewer Fund Fund Total 
Operating Revenues 
Charges for services $ 317891°78 $ 6,586 $ 3,795,664 

Total operating revenues 3,789,078 6,586 3,795,664 

Operating Expenses ISalaries and related expenses 796,885 796,885 
Supplies 198,191 2,855 201,046 
Repairs and maintenance 558,506 1,553 560,059 
Contractual services 755,918 91,478 847,396 I 
Other services and charges 206,422 9,044 215,466 
Depreciation expense 484,499 116,944 

Total operating expenses 3,000,421 221,874 3,222,295 
"I 

Operating Income (Loss) 7881657 (215,288) 

iNon-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Interest income 73 73 
Ad-valorem receipts 36,790 36,790 
Grant revenues 106,123 106,123 I 
Interest expense (327,008) (327,008) 

Sale of assets 5,406 5,406 
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (284.739) 106,123 (178,616) I 

Change in Net Position 503,918 (109,165) 394,753 

INet Position 
Beginning of year 15,340,720 2,598,614 
Prior period adjustment {295,607) 
Beginning of year, restated 15,045!111 2,5981614 I 
End of year $ 15 549,031 $ 2,489 449 $ 181°38,4801 1

i 

I 

I 


RECEIVIO 
iIDEC D! 201'1 

I 

I 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF D'ffiERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


NOtE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I. Introduction 

The City of D'Iberville, Mississippi the (City) was incorporated on February 10, 1988 under the 
provisions of the State of Mississippi. The City operates under a council-manager form of government, 
and is authorized to provide various services under State law. 

The City of D'Iberville is a municipal corporation governed by an elected five member council and 
maYor. Each council member and the mayor serve a four year term. 

The, accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices are 
discpssed in subsequent sections of this Note. The remainder of the notes is organized to provide 
explanations, including required disclosures, of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2013. 

II. Financial Reporting Entity 

The accompanying financial statements present the City's governmental units over which the City 
exercises significant influence. Significant influence or accountability is based primarily on operational 
or functional relationships with the City (as distinct from legal relationships). 

Co~ponent unit criteria are based on identification of legally separate organizations for which the elected 
offiltials of the City are financially accountable. The City has no component units. 

In accordance with a pre-incorporation agreement, the D'Iberville schools continue to be operated and 
maintained by the Harrison County School District. The City does not appoint any of the school board, 
and . the property taxes that are collected from residents within the City for the school district are paid 
directly to the school district by the Harrison County Tax Collector. 

Management has identified one joint venture (Harrison County Utility Authority), and one jointly 
gov¢rned organization (Harrison County Library). A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization • 	 that, results from a contractual arrangement that is owned, operated, or governed by two or more 
participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control, in which the participants retain (a) 
an o,ngoing fmancial interest or (b) an ongoing financial responsibility. Ajointly governed organization is 
simi1ar in nature to a joint venture in that they provide goods and services to the citizenry of two or more 
gov¢rnments; however, there is no ongoing significant financial interest or responsibility by the 
participating governments . 

• m. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

(A) Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The, government-wide financial statements (Le., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all ofthe non-fiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the effect 
of inter-fund activities has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally 
are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI I 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS · SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 ,

I 
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (Continued) 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or Isegment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or Isegment and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements 
of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program 
revenues are reported instead as general revenues. I 
(B) Fund Financial Statements 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major I 
individual governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate columns 
within the fund financial statements. 

I 
IV. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

(A) Basis of Accounting 

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the U.S. (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for 
establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and 
Interpretations). 

IThe government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal 
activity (between or within funds). Proprietary fund financial statements also report using this same focus 
and basis of accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are I 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
the related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. I 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement ,
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Only current assets and current liabilities are '·Igenerally included on the balance sheet. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period 
or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers 
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. I 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, 
debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and 
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. I 
Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual and so has been 
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be I 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses I
related to the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary 
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• CITY OF D'ffiERVll..LE, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 
.. 
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POliCIES (Continued) 

funqs are charges to customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of 
proViding goods or services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other 
revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the fmancial statements. 

(B) li'und Types and Major Funds 

Governmental Funds 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It accounts for all 
financial resources of the general government, except those accounted for in other funds. 

CDBG Grant Fund - The CDBG grant fund is used by the City to account for all of the resources 
for and the payment of all special capital related projects of the City that are funded through the 
Community Development Block Grant - Small cities program. 

Promenade TIF Fund - The Promenade TIF Fund is used by the City to account for all of the 
revenues and related expenditures of the tax increment financing issued for the Promenade retail 
developments. 

Proprietary Funds 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Utility Fund The utility fund accounts for operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing water and sewer services to the residents of the City 
ofD'Iberville on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

Waterfront Development Fund - The waterfront development fund accounts for operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the 
governing body is that costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing boat slips to the 
residents of the City of D'Iberville will be financed or recovered primarily through user charges in 
the form ofrental receipts. 

(C) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI I 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 I 
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

v. Assets, Liabilities, and Net position or Equity I 
(A) Casb and Casb Equivalents 

IFor purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City's cash and cash equivalents are primarily considered 
to be cash on hand, amounts held in demand deposits, all certificates of deposits and cash equivalents, 
which are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash (including restricted 
assets) generally three months or less. I 
(B) Inter-fund Receivables and Payables I 
Transactions between funds that are representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements and transactions 
that have not resulted in the actual transfer of cash at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either 
"due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of inter-fund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" I
(i.e., the non-current portion of inter-fund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial 
statements as "internal balances." I 
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund fmancial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve 
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that these funds are not available for appropriation 
and are not expendable available financial resources. There are no advances between funds at year-end. I 
(C) Restricted Assets I 
Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature or normal understanding 
of the availability of the asset. Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, 
grantors, or laws. Restricted assets in the utility fund represent the largest principal payment due for the I 
repayment of the 1998 Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding bonds (as required by the debt covenant) the 
largest principal payment for Series 2011 Water and Sewer Special Obligation Bonds, and amounts that 
are classified as customer meter deposits. I 
When both restricted and non-restricted assets are available for use, the policy is to use restricted assets 
first. I 
(D) Capital Assets 

ICapital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columrts within the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets, other than buildings, 
improvements other than buildings and infrastructure assets, are defmed by the government as assets with I 
an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess 
of one year. 

I 
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. In the fund-level 
financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital 
outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisJtion. Fixed assets used in proprietary fund Ioperations are accounted for as they are in the government-wide financial statements. 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


NQTE1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POliCIES (Continued) 

Th~ costs of Donnal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest 
inclJITed during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of 
the capitalized value of the assets constructed. No interest cost was capitalized during the current fiscal 
year. 

Property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets of the City are depreciated using the $fraight line method 
over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 50 years 
Building improvements 20 years 
Public domain infrastructure 50 years 
Utility system infrastructure 10 ­ 50 years 
Machinery and equipment 3 -15 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Office furniture and equipment 5 10 years 

(E) Long"Term Obligations 

In the governrnent"wide financial statements and proprietary fimd financial statements, long-tenn debt 
and. other long-tenn obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fimd statement ofnet position. 

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums, ifany, as other 
financing sources of the current period. Issuance costs, if any, are reported as expenditures at the time 
incurred. 

(F) Compensated Absences 


The ~ity has two types of compensated absences that are described as follows: 


• 	 Vacation Full time employees are granted 6 to 24 vacation days per year depending on the 
employee's length of service. 

• 	 Sick Leave .- Full-time employees are granted 12 sick leave days per year. However, unused sick 
1Jeave is not reimbursed upon termination. 

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fimd financial 
statements. For governmental fund financial statements, the amount of accumulated vacation leave has 
been: recorded as a current liability to the extent that the amounts are expected to be paid using 
expepdable available financial resources. 

The compensated absences liability is computed using the specific identification method whereby the 
actual number of vacation hours is mUltiplied by the employee's hourly rate at September 30, 2013. 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI I 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 1013 I 
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 


The resulting liability is then increased to include social security and retirement contributions that the 
 I
City is required to pay upon liquidation of the liability. 

(G) Fund Equity I 
Fund balances are classified as follows: 

Nonspendable-Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in a spendable form or I 
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 


Restricted-Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the City Charter, 
 ICity Code, state or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 

Committed-Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action 

by City Council ordinance or resolution. This includes the budget reserve account. 
 I 
Assigned-Amounts that are designated by management for a specific purpose but are not 

spendable until a budget ordinance is passed by City Council. 
 I 
Unassigned-All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 

IThe details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet (page 23). As 
discussed in Note I: V (C), restricted funds are used first as appropriate. Assigned Funds are reduced to 
the extent that expenditure authority has been budgeted by Council or the assignment has been changed 
by management. Decreases to fund balance first reduce unassigned fund balance; in the event that 
unassigned fund balance becomes zero, then assigned and committed fund balances are used in that order. 

General Fund I 
The general fund has a restricted fund balance of $34,345 for unemployment compensation and an 
unassigned fund balance of$7,867,755 at September 30, 2013. 

Other Funds 

The following non-major fund has a restricted fund balance designated for specific purposes: 

2004 TIF Fund - Capital project: $307,272 

The following non-major fund has an unassigned balance at September 30, 2013: 

MDOT Sangani Blvd. Fund - Special revenue: ($70,617) 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that 
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific 
purpose. 

Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. There 
were no reservations or designations of fund balance at year-end. I 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

(B) Net poSition 

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. 

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets . 

Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, 
grantors, laws or regulations ofother governments. 

NOTE 2: CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
lnflpws ofResources, and Net Position. This statement provides fmancial reporting guidance for deferred 
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of fmancial position 
and, related disclosures. It also identifies net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a 
statement of financial position, or the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources 
and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. As implied above, the statement changes the 
previous classification of net assets to net position, and consequently the statement of net assets to the 
stat~ment ofnet position. 

For ' the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the City early implemented Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65 Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This 
statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of 
resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and 
liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were 
previously reported as assets and liabilities. The Statement also provides other financial reporting 
guidance related to the impact of the financial statement elements of deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources, such as the changes in the determination of major fund calculations and 
limiting the use ofdeferred in financial statement presentations. 

NOTE3: CASH 

A s"$ltnary of cash (including restricted deposits) as of September 30, 2013 is as follows: 

Government activities: 
Unrestricted cash $ 9,499,039 
Restricted cash 34,345 

Business-type activities: 
Unrestricted cash 2,714,875 
Restricted cash 1,170,087 

$ 13,418,346 
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CITY OF D'ffiERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI I 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 I 
NOTE 3: CASH (Continued) 

The carrying amount of the City's total deposits with financial institutions at September 30, 2013, was I$13,418,346 and the bank balance was $13,606,557. Of this amount $1,204,432 is restricted for 
unemployment, utility debt service and customer deposits. 

ICustodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a 
financial institution, the City will not be able to recover deposits or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. The City does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. 
However, the City follows state statutes that allow public entities to select depositories on the basis of I 
competitive bid. Depositories must be covered by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or 
collateralized in an amount equal to 105% of the uninsured deposit. The collateral is now held in the 
name of the State Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is I 
governed by Section 27-105-5 ofthe Mississippi Code. 

NOTE 4: RECEIVABLES AND REVENUES I 
Under this program, the City's funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State 
Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral Iagainst those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, securities pledged by that 
institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not recovered by the 
FDIC. I 
(A) Receivables 

Receivables, excluding grant receivables, at September 30, 2013 consist of the following: I 
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

I 
Other Total Waterfront Total Business­

Governmental Governmental Water & Sewer Development Type 
General Fund Funds Activities Fund Fund Activities I 

Receivables: 

Property tax $ 20,914 $ $ 20,914 $ $ $ 
 -ISales tax 946,670 946,670 

Franchise tax 114,772 114,772 

Garbage 109,832 109,832 
 -ICourt fees 227,949 227,949 
Other receivables, net 3,885 3,400 7,285 536,639 1,560 538,199 

Total receivables $ 1,424,022 $ 538,199 I3,400 =$===1,4....27=,4....2=2=$===5....36=,6=39. =$======1=,5=60,= 

Govennnental funds report unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not 
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer 
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. The City I 
has $1,098,811 reported as unearned revenue on the Statement of Net Position as of September 30, 2013. 
Please refer to Note 10 Commitments and Contingencies (B) Grants and Awards for additional 
information on page 52. I 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


NOTE 4: RECEIVABLES AND REVENUES (Continued) 

(B) Utility Accounts Receivable 
• 

Utility customer receivables consist ofthe following at September 30, 2013: 

Water and sewer utility charges billed 
but uncollected $ 968,905 

Water and sewer utility charges accrued 

• but unbilled at year-end 	 158,268 
Less: 	 Allowance for uncollectible accounts (590,534) 

Utility accounts receivable $ 536,639 

The City reports receivables at net realizable value. The allowance for doubtful accounts determination is 
based on historical losses and current economic conditions. Delinquent receivables are analyzed on a 
continuing basis, and once these receivables are determined to be uncollectible, they are written off 
through a charge against an existing allowance account. .. (C) Due from Other Governments 

The: City reported the following amounts as due from other governments as of September 30,2013: .. 
Governmental Activities 	 Business-Type Activities 

, Non-major Water & Waterfront.. 
General CDBG Governmental Sewer Development 

Fund Grant Fund Funds Fund Fund .. Due from other governments: 
FEMAIMEMA $ 151,255 $ $ 6,800 $ 2,348 $ 
CD:ijG 2,439,194 
MDOT 329,616• 
ClAP 4,970 
Tidelands Grant 23,580.. Other Public Safety Grants 47,995 30,865 

Total $ 199,250 $ 2,439,194 $ 367,281 $ 2,348 $ 28,550 
l0:,.. 

.. 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 1013 


NOTE 5: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

The composition of inter-fund balances at September 30,2013 is as follows: 

Due From Due To 
OtherFWlds Other Funds 

Major FWlds: 
General FWld $ 108,344 $ 
Non-major Funds: 108,344 
Totals $ 108,344 $ 108,344 

All remaining inter-fund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods 
and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the 
accmmting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 

In addition to the above inter-fund loans, the following transfers were made between funds during the 
year ended September 30,2013: 

Major Funds: 
General Fund 
CDBG Grant Fund 

Non-major Funds: 
Totals 

Transfer to Transfers from 

Other funds Other funds 


$ 2,189,484 $ 
101,206 

5,295 2,093,573 
$ 21194,779 $ 21194,779 

Transfers are indicative of the City's matching portion of various capital projects, lease payments or debt 
service, subsidies ofvarious City operations and re-allocations of special revenues. The transfers from the 
CDBG Grant Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund are for the capital expenditures that were recorded 
initially in the CDBG Grant Fund but were actual capital improvements to the utility system. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I
,

" 

I 

I 


I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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• CITY OF D'mERVll..LE, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS 

-
 Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30,2013 is as follows: 


.. 
 Balance Disposalsl Balance 

Govertunental activities: October 1 Additions Adjustments SeE!ember 30 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 7,025,305 $ 11,550,976 $ $ 18,576,281 
Constrpction in progress 11,781,853 1,666,945 {6,017,4412 7,431,351 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 18,807,158 13,217,921 (6,017,4412 26,007,632 

.­

.. 

.. 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

B~ 
Machiaery and equipment 
Improvements other than Buildings 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

2;n3,022 
2,(,)99,943 
7,501,243 

13,408,255 
3,166,125 

29,118,588 

332,363 
131,452 
140,332 

2,095,708 
133,460 

2,833,315 

6,017,447 

{74,1lZ2 
5,943,330 

9,322,832 
2,201,395 
7,641,575 

15,503,963 
3,225,468 

37,895,233 

.. 
1,tf,i:.. 
'e.. 

Less a¢cumuJated depreciation: 
Buildings 
MachiQery and equipment 
Improvements other than Buildings 
Infrastructure 
Vehiclfls 

Totaliaccumulated depreciation 
Total:capital assets being depreciated, net 

531,344 
1,236,200 
2,903,834 
4,165,044 
2,184,155 

11,020277 
18,098,011 

160,714 
199,603 
310,673 
363,1l2 
250,037 

1,284,139 
1,549,176 

{40,042} 
{401042} 

5,983,372 

692,058 
1,435,803 
3,214,507 
4,528,156 
2,394,150 

12,264,674 
25,630,559 

Goyernmental activities capital assets, net $ 36,905,169 $ 14,767,097 $ (34,075) $ 51,638,191 

III 

The:adjustments in the amount of $6,0 17,447 represent construction in progress that has been completed 
as of September 30, 2013 and has been reclassified to buildings. The other adjustments in the vehicle .. asset class represent CWTent year disposals ofthose assets . 

III 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Balance Disposals/ Balance I 
Business - Type activities: October 1 Additbns Adjustments September 30 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 321,080 $ $ $ 321,080 I 
Constructbn in progress 433,043 21,500 454,543 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 754,123 21,500 775,623 1 
Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings m~ ~UI~ 
Machinery and equipment 171,156 171,156 
Water, sewer and gas systems 28,252,882 131,186 28,384,068 
Boat slips and piers 
Vehicles ______ ___ ...... 1) 3,0.....;;.1~.....:,~:4_1~_~ I___3_,0_:=:!_~ 52=,575 __----c(:..;..35 .54---C.L. ___ 

Total capital assets being depreciated __3;;....;1.:...,9__ _____---.;.1__ __---'(>.:..35;...:;,54~1) 708=;177 83,..;.;.,7...;;..61;;,... __...;;.3=2,0;;.;:.5.....:,7,1;;,...9__ 

ILess accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings 96,585 4,606 101,191 
Machinery and equipment 141,885 8,598 150,483 • 
Water, sewer and gas systems 8,174,926 474,468 8,649,394 • 
Boat slips and piers 975,720 113,771 1,089,491 
Vehicles 81,369 {31,98~ 49,384 1 
Total accumulated depreciation 9,470,485 601,443 {31,985} 10,039,943 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 22,438,492 {417,682l p,556} 22,017,254 
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 23,192,615 $ ~396,182l $ p,55~ $ 22,792,877 1 

The other adjustments in the vehicle asset class represent current year disposals of those assets. 

IConstruction work in progress for the governmental and utility activities of the City is composed of the 
follOwing: 

Money Spent Remaining IProject to Date Commitment 

Central Avenue $ 5,707,226 $ 378,091 I
Sangani Widening 1,171,132 1,394,164 
Fire Station 228,654 2,755,000 
Sportsplex 324,339 

Total governmental activities $ 7,431,351 $ 4,527,255 

Central Avenue - Water and Sewer 433,043 
ClAP Project -Waterfront Development 21,500 749,000 

Total business-type actvities $ 454,543 $ 749,000 I 
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CITY OF D'ffiERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 
.. 
NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

The initial architectural and design fees for the fIre station, sportsp1ex, and other costs associated with the 
Sangani Widening project have been completed as of September 30, 2013. The actual construction 
coritracts associated with these projects have not been awarded until after year end, therefore, these costs 
will be included in the total capitalized costs once these projects are completed. 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety.. Public works 
Culture and recreation 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: .. Utility Fund 
Waterfront Development Fund 

Total business - type activities 

.. 

$ 	 224,815 
233,163 
722,310 
103,251 

$ 1,284,139 

$ 	 484,499 
116,944 

$ 601,443 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


NOTE 7: LONG-TERM DEBT 

Payable at 
Govennnental Activities October 1 Additions Reductions 
General obligation bond $ 3,605,000 $ $ 210,000 
Special obligation bond 4,000,000 150,000 
Limited obligation bonds 5,880,000 12,000,000 720,000 
Notes payable 1,281,462 
Capital leases payable 175,942 56,424 
Compensated absences 296,971 10,121 

15,239,375 12,010,121 1,136,424 
Less: bond discotmt 25,298 1,340 
Add: bond premimn 468,141 11,704 

Total govermnental activities 15,214,077 12,478,262 1,146,788 

Business-Type Activities 
Revenue refunding bonds 6,955,000 425,000 
Notes payable 1,696,860 221,673 
Compensated absences 33,953 1,802 

8,685,813 648,475 
Add: bond premimn 71,978 4!436 

Payable at 
September 30 
$ 3,395,000 

3,850,000 
17,160,000 

1,281,462 
119,518 
307,092 

26,113,072 
23,958 

456,437 
26,545,551 

6,530,000 
1,475,187 

32,151 
8,037,338 

67,542 

,,,lit 

II 


I 

Due in I 

one year 
$ 	 220,000 

155,000 I 
1,220,000 

58,620 I 
1,653,620 I 
1,653,620 I 

435,000 I
230,606 


665,606 
 I 
Total business-type activities 8,757,791 	 652!911 8,104,880 665,606 
Total govermnent 	 $ 23,971,868 $ 12,478,262 $ 1,799,699 $ 34,650,431 $ 2,319,226 

General Obligation Bond 

In December 2009, the City authorized and issued General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2009 
tor the purpose of expanding, repairing, improving, adorning and equipping municipal buildings, 
constructing, improving public streets and purchasing land in conjunction with the many Community 
Development Block Grant programs. The amount of the bond issued was $4,000,000 with a varying 
interest rate of 3.0-4.25% and principal maturing December 2024. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the general obligation bond are as follows: 
Year 

Ending Principal Interest Total 

2014 220,000 114,738 334,738 

2015 230,000 105,600 335,600 
 \:lI
2016 240,000 96,200 336,200 
2017 250,000 86,400 336,400 • 
2018 ' 260,000 77,500 337,500 

2019-2023 1,500,000 253,826 1,753,826 
2024-2028 695,000 25,120 720,120 

$ 	 3,395,000 $ 759,384 $ 4,154,384 I 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


NOTE 7: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

SPttcial Obligation Bond 

In August 2011, the City authorized and issued Special Obligation Bond, Series 2011 for the purpose of 
purchasing approximately 6.4 acres of property to be subsequently leased to the Institute for Marine 
Mammal Studies for the development of their Ocean Expo Aquarium. The amount of the bond issued 
was $4,000,000 with a varying interest rate of2.0-5.375% and principal maturing September 2031. This 
debt is not a direct obligation of the City. A portion of the admission charged to visitors to the aquarium 
will be used to retire the debt. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the special obligation bond are as follows: 
Year 

Ending Principal Interest Total 
2014 $ 155,000 $ 165,668 $ 320,668 
2015 160,000 162,568 322,568 
2016 175,000 159,368 334,368 
2017 165,000 154,992 319,992 
2018 170,000 150,042 320,042 

2019-2023 955,000 646,560 1,601,560 
2024-2028 1,190,000 413,501 1,603,501 
2029-2031 880,000 94,770 974,770 

$ 3,850,000 $ 1,947,469 $ 5,797,469 

Limited Obligation Bonds 

The'City issues tax increment financing bonds to encourage economic development of certain areas of the
ill 

CitY. The original amount of tax increment financing bonds issued in prior years was $8,735,000. 

On January 15,2013, the City issued $12,000,000 City of D'Iberville, Mississippi Tax Increment Limited 
Obligation Refimding Bonds, Series 2013 for the Gulf Coast Promenade Project. These bonds have a 
vary,ing interest rate of 2.0-4.75% with principal maturing April 2033. 

The. principal and interest on tax increment financing bonds are paid from the increase in sales tax 
revepue that is generated from the developed area. These bonds are generally issued as 10 or 20-year 
seril:l1 bonds with varying amounts of principal maturing each year. These bonds are reflected in the 
gov~mmental activities column of the Statement ofNet Position. 
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CITY OF D'mERVll..LE, MISSISSIPPI I 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 I 
NOTE 7: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 


Tax increment financing bonds currently outstanding are as follows: 


TIF Bond 1998 
TIF Bond 1999 
TIF Bond 2004 
TIF Bond 2008 
TIF Bond 2013 

Interest 
rates 

4.4-5.7% 
4.5-6.25% 

4.84% 
4.76% 

2.0-4.75% 

Amount I 
$ 590,000 


575,000 

1,835,000 
 I 
2,160,000 


12,000,000 

$ 17,160,000 
 I 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for tax increment financing bonds are as follows: 

Year 
Ending 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

2019-2023 
2024-2028 
2029-2033 

PrinciEal 
$ 1,220,000 

1,275,000 
1,015,000 
1,070,000 
1,110,000 
4,715,000 
3,420,000 
3,335,000 

$ 17,160,000 

I 
Interest Total 

$ 	 727,536 $ 1,947,536 I 
682,861 1,957,861 
635,831 1,650,831 
600,764 1,670,764 I 
562,648 1,672,648 


2,216,418 6,931,418 

1,346,763 4,766,763 
 I 

509,850 3,844,850 
$ 7,282,671 $ 24,442,671 

Revenue Bonds 

IThe City also issues bonds where the government pledges the income derived from the water and sewer 
charges collected to pay the debt service. These bonds were issued to expand and improve existing water 
and sewer facilities. 

In May 2010, the City issued Revenue refunding bonds in the amoWlt of $4,835,000. These bonds have a 
varying interest rate of 2 .0-4.125% with principal maturing July 2023. 

In February 2011, the City authorized and issued $2,875,000 in revenue bonds for the purpose of 
installing digital, Wi-Fi enabled water meters throughout the City. These bonds have a varying interest 
rate of4.625-5% with principal maturing July 2024. I 


I 

I 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


NOTE 7: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Revenue bonds outstanding recorded in the utility fund at the year-end are as follows: 

Interest 
rate Amount 

2010 Revenue Refunding Bond 2.0-4.125% $ 3,830,000 
2011 Revenue Bond 4.5-5.25% 2,700,000 

$ 6,530,000 

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

Year 
Ending Principal Interest Total 

2014 $ 435,000 $ 271,363 $ 706,363 
2015 450,000 256,213 706,213 
2016 465,000 240,513 705,513 
2017 480,000 224,262 704,262 
2018 500,000 205,662 705,662 

2019-2023 2,820,000 712,377 3,532,377 
2024-2028 935,000 261,956 1,196,956 
2029-2030 445,000 35,438 480,438 

$ 6,530,000 $ 2,207,784 $ 8,737,784

• 
Not!ts Payable 

State Revolving Loans 

The.City is currently participating in the State Revolving Loan Program to provide funds for water and 
sew~r system upgrades and improvements. These loans are granted with a 20 year maturity with equal 
amounts of principal maturing each year. The interest rates on these loans vary from 0% to 4.5%. These 
loans are reflected in the Business - Type Activities column of the Statement ofNet Position. 

Mis.~issippi Development Bank Loan 

The City entered into a loan agreement with the Mississippi Development Bank to provide funds for 
wat~r and sewer system upgrades and improvements. This loan has a 20 year maturity and an interest rate 
of 3.00%. This loan is reflected in the Business - Type Activities column of the Statement of Net 
Position. 

Special Community Disaster Loans 

The City obtained two loans from the Federal Emergency Management Agency in the amounts of 
$1,281,462 and $348,563 for general government purposes and water and sewer operations, respectively 
under the Community Disaster Loan program. The payments on this loan are deferred for five years 
maturing in FYE 2016 and bear interest at 2.70%. 
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NOTE 7: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Annual debt service requirement for the loans are as follows: 

Governmental Activities Business -T~ Activities 

Year 
 I

Ending PrinciEal Interest Total PrinciEal Interest Total 
2014 $ $ $ $ 230,606 $ 33,696 $ 264,302 
2015 239,985 24,318 264,303 I
2016 180,750 15,212 195,962 
2017 1,281,462 251,596 1,533,058 460,439 60,702 521,141 
2018 60,423 7,384 67,807 I

2019-2023 152,423 21,971 174,394 

2024-2028 112,426 8,293 120,719 

2029-2030 38,135 703 38,838 
 I 

$ 1,281,462 $ 251,596 $ 1,533,058 $ 1,475,187 $ 172,279 $ 1,647,466 

Capital Lease Pavable 

In January 2005, the City entered into a lease agreement with Hancock Bank for the purchase of a fire 
truck in the amount of $515,985. This lease has a ten year maturity and an interest rate 00.89%. 

The following is an analysis ofthe leased assets included in vehicles: 

IGovernmental 
Activities 

Vehicles $ 515,985 ILess accumulated depreciation (464,386) 
$ 51,599 

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum payments required under the leases together with 
their present value as of September 30, 2013: 

Year Ended Governmental 
September 30 Activities 

2014 63,268 
2015 63,268 

Total minimum lease payments 126,536 
Less amount representing interest (7,018) I 
Present value ofminimum lease payments $ 119,518 

ICompensated Absences 

The City's policies relative to compensated absences and the method of computing accrued liabilities and 
reporting are discussed in Note 1 V (F). I 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


NQTE 8: RETIREMENT PLANS 

(A' Public Employees' Retirement System 

The City participates in a retirement system administered by the Public Employees' Retirement System of 
Mi~sissippi (PERS). The system is a defmed benefit plan and includes a multi-employer, cost-sharing 
pension plan as described below: 

Plart Description and Provisions 

Substantially all of the City's full-time employees participate in PERS, a multi-employer, cost-sharing, 
derIDed benefit public employee pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual 
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 

Benefit provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi 
Legislature. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. 

Tha~ information may be obtained by writing to Public Employees' Retirement System, PERS Building, 
429:Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005, or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS. 

DeSCription ofFunding Policy 

PER,S members are required to contribute 9.0% of their annual covered salary, and the City is required to 
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The employer's PERS rate increased from 14.26% to 15.75% 
of annual covered payroll effective July 1, 2013. The contribution requirements of PERS members are 
esta~lished and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. The City's contributions to 
PER;S for the years ending September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, were $625,596, $529,901 and $510,903 
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

(B) Deferred Compensation Plan 

The: City, through lNG, offers its employees a voluntary deferred compensation plan created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, permits 
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to 
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. 

The assets of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. The 
requirements of Intemal Revenue Code Section 457(g) prescribe that the City does not own the amounts 
deferred by employees, including the related income on those amounts. Additionally, the City does not 
have. fiduciary accountability for the plan. Accordingly, the assets and the liability for compensation 
deferred by plan participants, including earnings on plan assets, are not included in the City's financial 
statements. 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 1013 

NOTE 9: RELATEDPARTYCO~TMENTS 

On September 30, 1998, the City entered into an agreement with the Harrison County Library Board of 
Trustees, the City of Gulfport, the City of Biloxi, the City of Pass Christian, and Harrison County to 
mutually cooperate in securing a more economical public library system through combined resources, 
interests, materials and facilities to be known as the Harrison County Library System. 

There are no specific monetary terms in the agreement, and the City of D'iberville has no equity interest 
in the organization. 

The Harrison County Library Board approves an operating budget every year which stipulates the amount 
of funds needed from participating municipalities and various other funding sources. I 
The City of D'Iberville contributed $86,408 for the year ended September 30, 2013. This agreement is 
cancelable upon 60 days written notice prior to the end of the fiscal year, and therefore, the City of 
D'Iberville does not have an ongoing financial responsibility. I 
Joint Venture 

IThe City of D'iberville is a member of the Harrison County Utility Authority (Authority) which was 
established by an act of the Mississippi Legislature and operates under MS Code 49-17-701 to provide for 
adequate wastewater b"eatment and solid waste disposal services to the citizens of Harrison County, IMississippi. The governing board is comprised of one member from each of the cities and two members 
from each of the counties who are member~ of the Authority. 

Through a fifty-year contract, the City of D'iberville is obligated to pay monthly, its pro-rata share of all 
operating, administrative, and capital costs of the Authority. Additionally, the City is jointly and 
severally liable for all of the liabilities of the Authority. 
between the City of D'Iberville and the other members. 

The Authority is classified as a joint venture 

I 
I 
I 
I 
~ 
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.. 	 CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

NOTE 9: REIJATED PARTY COMMITMENTS (Continued) 

The following is a synopsis of the Authority's fmancial statements as of and for the year ended September 
30,2013, a complete copy of which is on, file at the administrative offices ofthe Authority. 

Harrison County Utility Authority Synopsis 
Statement of Net Position 

Assets
III. Current assets $ 6,295,664 

Restricted assets 29,214,085 
Property, plant and equipment, net 284,207,835 
Deferred charged 241,380 -

Total assets 	 319,958,964 

Deferred outflow of resources 	 18,828,383 

Liabilities 
Current, unrestricted $ 5,983,296 
Current, restricted 15,086,480.. Long.terrn liabilities 107,947,759 
Interest rate swap 18,828,383 

Total Iiabilities 147,845,918.. 
Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 171,307,610

• 	 Restricted for debt service and reserves 20,628,373 
Unrestrricted 	 (994,554) 

Total net position $ 190,941,429

• 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Operating revenues 	 $ 16,810,830 
Operating expenses 	 (18,855,749) 
Depreciation 	 (7,115,721) 
Non-operating revenues and expenses 	 17,093,477 

Change in net position 	 $ 7,932,837
lit 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI I 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

I 
NOTE 9: RELATED PARTY COMMITMENTS (Continued) 


The following ftnancial transactions concerning transactions with the Authority have been included 
 Iwithin the City ofD'Iberville's fInancial statements under the following captions: 

General Fund 
Statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance: 

Public works expenditures: 
Other services and charges (solid waste charges) 

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund 
Statement ofrevenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings: 

Contracted services (wastewater treatment) which 
inlcudes a payable at year-end in the amount of $72,378 

NOTE 10: CO~NTSANDCONTINGENCmS 

Commitments 

(A) Harrison County Inter-local Agreement 

I 
$ 353,787 I 


I 

$ 706,986 I 

li' '·····I

I 


On February 15,2012, the Council approved an inter-local agreement with Harrison County, Mississippi 
to provide for certain services in connection with the City's roads, bridges, highways, approach and 
related drainage, and parks and recreational facilities. This agreement is for the period January 3, 2012 I
through December 31, 2015. On July 22, 2013, the Council also approved an inter-local agreement for all 
emergency communications, including 911 services for public safety and protection and other purposes. 
This agreement is for the period July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2016. The City pays 23% of the total Icosts of direct salaries and all fringe benefits of the total number of all dispatchers operating in the 
Sheriffs dispatch unit. The City further agrees to pay 100% of the actual payments, including fringe 
benefits, which the County pays to dispatchers working overtime or holidays on City matters. Based on 
the payment fonnula, the City's annual payments are estimated to be $217,046. However, adjustments I 
may be made to the pricing formula based on actual expenditures incurred, and the City's reimbursement 
to Harrison County for these services shall not exceed $300,000 each year. I 
(B) Matching Funds - USM Advanced Education Center 

In 1997, the City had agreed to participate with the county and other cities in funding the local matching I 
contribution for the construction of the Advanced Education Center at the USM Gulf Park Campus. The 
City's 3.0% portion of the annual debt service for the $2,000,000 in bonds issued by Harrison County will 
be approximately $5,081 annually through September 2016. 

(C) Institute for Marine Mammals, Inc. 

In June 2011, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement with the Institute for Marine Mammals, 
Inc., a non-proftt organization for the purpose of constructing the Ocean Expo Learning Center on the 
leased premises. The City has committed to an initial investment of at least nine million ftve hundred 
thousand dollars ($9,500,000) for the land acquisition, onsite and offsite salt water piping infrastructure I 
speciftcally for use by the facility and other related costs associated with the agreement. 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


NOTE 10: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) 

In addition, the City has agreed to secure fmancing of at least seven million dollars ($7,000,000) for the 
use, in constructing roads surrounding the Ocean Expo Learning Center and the areas adjacent to the 
facility. 

The City plans to obtain funding for this project through private and intergovernmental grants and will 
reduce the capital outlay on a dollar-for-dollar basis. If the City's financial outlay is not recouped within 
twelve months from the date that the Ocean Expo Learning Center is open to the public, the lessee will 
pay to the City an annual ground lease fee in the amount of $1 per paying visitor of the Ocean Expo 
Le~ng Center. The initial payment will be on January 1 of the year following the first calendar year 
that the Ocean Expo Learning Center is open to the public. The annual ground lease fee will continue 
undl the total of all ground lease fee payments equals the lessor of seven milIion five hundred thousand 
($7 ;500,000) or an amount necessary to reimburse the City after considering all other sources for the 
City's actual land acquisition cost, infrastructure costs, engineering fees, and any other costs incurred by 
the City. 

In June 2011, the City entered into an agreement with Ramco Development, LLC to purchase 
approximately 6.5 acres to subsequently lease to the Institute for Marine Mammals, Inc. for the 
con~truction of the Ocean Expo Leaming Center. The land was purchased in the amount of $6,969,600 . 
The: City issued special obligation bonds in the amount of $4,000,000 as described in Note 7. The City 
also issued a promissory note in the amount of$2,469,600 to Ramco Development, LLC which is secured 
by !\l1 assignment of lease contingent upon the opening of the facility. The promissory note is effective 
upof\ opening of the facility; therefore, it is not reflected in the fmancial statements as of September 30, 
2013. Any outstanding balance on the promissory note will be due and payable in full on or before June 
2031. The City has agreed to assign and set over to Ramco Development, LLC, 75% of the City's $1 per 
patron lease payment as provided in the lease agreement with the Institute for Marine Mammals, Inc. 

The, lease purchase agreement with the Institute of Marine Mammals, Inc. expired on its own tenns in 
June 2013. At the present time, the City is unsure if it will pursue another agreement with IMMS or 
explore other opportunities for the development of this land. 

Contingencies 

(A) Litigation 

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently 
detenninable, in the opinion of the City's legal counsel, the resolution of these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

(B) Grants and Awards 

Amqunts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor 
agencies, principally federal and state governments. Any disallowed expenses, including amounts already 
collected, might constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The City of D'Iberville has been notified by 
the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) of the repayment of monies that were 
awarded to the City in FY 2012. The City received $2.7 million during FY 2012, and the City has 
partittlly spent the award on allowable expenditures. 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI I 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

I 
NOTE 10: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) 

Management has reported $1,019,759 as unearned revenue, a liability, to reflect any amount due to IMDEQ as of September 30, 2013. mDecember of 2013, the City returned $843,291 to MDEQ for the 
unspent portion of the grant award. 

INOTE 11: RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the year ended September 30, I 
2013, the City carried insurance through various commercial carriers to cover all risks of losses. The 
government has had no settled claims resulting from these risks that exceeded its commercial coverage in 
any of the past three fiscal years. I 
NOTE 12: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

IThe City had the following adjustments to beginning fund balance and net position, respectively, which 
are reflected in the following schedule: 

IExhibit B ExhibitD Exhibit F 

Early implementation ofGASB 65 $ (286,061) $ $ (295,601) 

Correct prior year construction in progress (308,602) 
 ICorrect prior year unearned revenue (181,976) 


Total adjustments (594,663) (181,976) (295,607) 

Beginning net position/fund balance 30,117,369 8,167,278 17,939,334 
 I$ 29,522,706 $ 7,985,302 $ 17,643,727 

NOTE 13: SUBSEQUENTEVENTS I 
Events that occur after the statement of net position date but before the financial statements were 
available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events Ithat provide evidence about conditions that existed at the statement ofnet position date are recognized in 
the accompanying fmancial statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that 
existed after the statement of net position date require disclosure in the accompanying notes. I 
Management of the City of D'Iberville, Mississippi evaluated the activity of the City through June 3, 
2014, (the date the financial statements were available to be issued), and detennined that the following 
subsequent events have occurred that require disclosure in the notes to the financial statements: I 
In February 2014, the Council approved a contract for site work at the D'Iberville Sports Complex in the 
amount of$591,172. I 
mApri12014, the Council approved a contract for the repairs and maintenance to the Rudy Moran water 
tank: in the amount of$237,777. I 
In May 2014, the Council approved a settlement with Utility Service Company, Inc. over disputes with 
the water tank repairs in the amount of $335,000. This amount has been reflected in the financial 
statements as a liability and offsetting expense in the Utility Fund. I 
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.. CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ­

BUDGET AND ACfUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 


Variance with 
final budget

• Original Final Posltve 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

REVENUES 
Taxes: .. 
 Property $ 2,705.030 $ 2,715,868 $ 2,831,458 S \15,590 


Sales 5,700.000 5,975.000 5,984,679 9,679 
Franchise 325,000 310,000 322,800 12.800 

Licenses and permits 329,000 309.900 321,499 11,599 
Intergovernmental 968.423 658.723 697.175 38,452.. Charges for services 400.850 383,900 385,751 1,851 

-
Fines and forfeits 716.000 651,500 697.337 45,837 
Interest 10,000 42,000 44,324 2,324 
Lease revenue 77,200 93,000 134,281 41,281 
Miscellaneous 30,000 98,100 112,744 14,644 

Total revenues 11,261,503 11,237,991 11,532,048 294.057 

EXPENDITURES 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

Personnel Services 1,000,300 1.001,723 869.034 132,689 
Supplies 44.000 45,500 34,611 10.889 - Other Services &. Charges 1,558.900 1.764,100 1.685,214 78,886 
Capital Outlay 39,000 361,000 359,710 1,290 

Total General Government 2.642.200 3.172,323 2.948,569 223,754 

• 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
Personnel Services 3,028,775 3,116,767 3,075,467 41,300 
Supplies 211,000 216,700 206,770 9,930 
Other Services &. Charges 422,462 565,350 533,165 32,185 
Capital Outlay 548,000 574,000 396,218 177,782 

Total Public Safety 4,210,237 4,472,817 4,211,620 261,197 

PlffiLIC WORKS 
Personnel Services 603,389 603,389 576.161 27,228 
Supplies 67,500 74,000 72,386 1.614 .- {)ther Services &. Charges 691,051 771.500 764,745 6,755 
Capital Outlay 223.000 263,000 162,163 100,837 

Total Public Works 1.584,940 1.711,889 __1,575,455 136,434 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT.. Personnel Services 223,556 223,656 257,715 (34,059) 

.. 
Supplies 9,000 8,800 604 8,196 
Other Services &. Charges __ 17.500 18,200 (9,643) 

Total Economic Development 250,056 250,656 286,162 (35,506) 

CULTIJRE &. RECREAnON 
Personnel Services 200,321 200,321 153,225 47,096 
Supplies 55,500 55,500 47,231 8,269 
Other Services &. Charges 231.500 234,700 184.019 50.681 
Capital Outlay 250,000 250,000 250.000 ., Total Cul lure &. Recreation 737,321 740.521 384,475 356.046 

Total Expenditures 9,424,754 10.348,206 9,406.281 941,925 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over expenditures 1.836.749 889.785 2.125,767 1.235.982 

• . OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
1n.surance Proceeds 35.000 35,385 385 
Sale of assets 5.000 244,500 244,527 27 .. 
 . Transfen; out p.136,495) (2.198,481) (2.139,499) 58.988 


Total other financing sources (uses) {J,131,495) (1,918,981) (1,859.581) 59.400 

.. Excess of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures S !1,294.746~ $ ~1,029,2021 266,180 $ 1,295,382 

Fund balance· October 1 ­
GAAP basis, restated 7,520,480.. Receivable/revenue adjustments 2.449,554 

Payable/expenditure adjustments ___Q,334.114) 

Fund halance • September 30 • 
GAAPbasis S 7.902,100• 54 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL -BUDGETARY BASIS 
CDBG GRANT FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1013 

Variance with 
Onal budget 

Original Final Posltve 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative} 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 988,032 $ 1,890,478 $ 372,753 $ {1,517,725) 

Total revenues 988,032 1,890,478 372,753 (1,517,725) 

EXPENDITURES 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

Capital Outlay 
Total General Government 

PUBLIC WORKS 
Capital Outlay 
Total Economic Development 

CULTURE AND RECREAnON 

___J88,573 
188,573 

740,173 
740P3 

196,087 
196,087 

1,580,539 
1,580,539 

182,055 
182,055 

184,478 
184,478 

14,032 
14,032 

1,396,061 
1,396,061 

I 
I 

Capital Outlay 
Total Culture and Recreation 

------ ­

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Other Contractual Services 
Total Economic Development 

152,977 
152,977 

215,058 
215,058 

107,426 
107,426 

107,632 
107,632 I","~-, 

Total Expenditures 1,081,723 1,991,684 1,517,725 
Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 

over expenditures (93,691) (101,206) (101,206) "'I 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 93,691 101,206 101,206 

Total other financing sources (uses) 93,691 101,206 101,206 I 
Excess ofrevenues and other 

sources over expenditures $ $ $ I 
Fund balance - October I -

GAAPbasis IReceivable/revenue adjustments 2,429,194 
Payable/expenditure adjustments (2,412,829) 

Fund balance - September 30 -
GAAPbasis $ 16,365 I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 


BUDGETARY BASIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


NOTE A: BUDGETARYDATA.. 
The procedures used by the City in establishing the budgetary data in the fmancial statements are as 
follows:.. 
1. 	 Prior to August 1, the City Manager submits to the Council members a proposed operating budget 

for the fiscal year beginning October 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and .. the means offinancing them . 

2 . 	 No later than September 15, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution. 

.. 
• 3. The General Fund and Special Revenue fund budgets are adopted on a cash basis 'as required by 

State statute. Accordingly, actual figures have also been presented on a cash basis. All budgeted 
amounts presented in the accompanying schedule are as originally adopted or as amended by the 
Council members. 

4. 	 The City Manager is responsible for monitoring the budget and actual results and is authorized to 
transfer budgeted amounts within funds. However, any revisions that alter the total expenditures 
must be approved by the Council members . 

• 

.. 

RECE\VEO .. OlC 05 t6\­

.. 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

COMBnaNGBALANCESHEET 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30. 2013. 

Assets 
Cash 
Grant receivable 

Total assets 

Special 
Revenue 
Funds 

$ 
118,503 

$ 118,503 

Debt 
Service 

Fund 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Capital 
Project 

Fund 

347,714 
248,778 

596,492 

$ 

$ 

Total 

347,714 
367,281 

714,995 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Unearned revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

$ 9,400 

71,376 
108,344 

189,120 

$ $ 277,796 
11,424 

289,220 

$ 287,196 
11,424 
71,376 

108,344 

478,340 

Fund Balance 
Restricted for capital projects 
Unassigned 

Total fWId balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

{70,617) 

{70,617) 

$ 118,503 $ $ 

307,272 

307,272 

596,492 $ 

307,272 
PO,617) 

236,655 

714,995 
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CITY OF D'ffiERvaLE, MISSISSIPPI 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


Revenues 
Intergovernmental 
Interest income 

Total revenue 

Expenditures 
Public safety 
Economic development 
Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 

over expenditures 

Other fmancing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance - ending 

58 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Special 
Revenue 

Funds 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

Capital 
Project 
Fund Total 

$ 668,395 $ $ 927,991 
215 

$ 1,596,386 
215 

668,395 928,206 

197,209 
148,257 
372,155 1,157,132 

1,136,424 
901,869 

1,596,601 

197,209 
148,257 

1,529,287 

1,136,424 
901,869 

717,621 2,038,293 1,157,132 3,913,046 

(49,226) (2,038,293) (228,926) (2,316,445) 

55,280 
{5,295) 

2,038,293 2,093,573 
{5,295) 

49,985 2,038,293 2,088,278 

759 (228,926) (228,167) 

{71,376) 536,198 464,822 


$ (70,617) $ $ 307,272 $ 236,655 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30.2013 

Assets 
Due from other governments 

Total assets 

MPO 
Central 

Avenue Grant 

$ 41,917 

$ 41,917 

HMGP 
Grant 

$ 

Bulletproof 
Vest 
Grant 

$ 682 

Special Revenue Funds 

DUI JAG 
Grant Grant 

$ 20,594 $ 
$ 201594 $ 

Narcotics 
Grant 

$ 9,589 

$ 9,589 

Homeland 
Security 

Grant 

$ 6,800 

$ 6,800 

MDOT 
Ma!letRd 

Grant 

$ 

MOOT 
Sangam Blvd 

$ 38,921 

$ 38,921 

$ 

$ 

Total 

118,503 

118.503 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 

Unearned revenue 

Total liabilities 

$ 7,877 
34,040 

41,917 

$ $ 
682 

682 

$ 1,523 
18,312 

19,835 

$ $ 
9,589 

9,589 

$ 
6,800 

6,800 

$ $ 
38,921 

71,376 

110,297 

$ 9,400 
108.344 

71,376 

189,120 

Fuud Balauce 
Restricted 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 41,917 $ $ 682 

759 

759 

$ 20,594 $ $ 9,589 $ 6,800 $ 

{71,376) 

{71,376) 

$ 38,921 $ 

PO,617) 

FO,617) 

118,503 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1013 


Seecial Revenue Funds 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental 

Total revenue 

MPO 
Central 

Avenue Grant 

$ 380,080 

380,080 

HMGP 
Grant 

$ 

Bulletproof 
Vest 
Grant 

our 
Grant 

$ 80,605 

80,605 

JAG 

~nt 

$ 30,118 

30,118 

Narcotics 
Grant 

$ 27,293 

27,293 

Homeland 
Security 

Grant 

$ 6,800 

6,800 

MOOT 
Mallet Rd 

Grant 

$ 1,739 
__1,739 

MOOT 
Sangani Blvd 

Grant 

$ 

Tota} 

668,395 

668,395 

Expenclitures 
Public safety 
Economic development 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

148,257 
231.823 

380.080 

140,332 

140,332 

12,237 

.12.237 

97,293 

97,293 

26.562 

26,562 

54.317 

54.317 

6,800 

6.800 

197,209 
148,257 
372z155 

717,621 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over expenditures (4.534) (6,275) (16,688) 3,556 (27,024) 1,739 (49,226) 

Otber financing sources: 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources 

4,534 

4,534 

6,275 17,447 

17,447 

(3,556) 

(3,556) 

27,024 

27,024 

{I ,739) 

(1.739) 

55,280 
~5,295) 

49.985 

Net change in fund balance 759 759 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance - ending ~ $ $ $ 759 $ $ $ $ $ 

(11.376) 

(71.376) $ 

pi ,376) 

(70,611) 
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CITY OF D'ffiERVll..LE, MISSISSIPPI 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 


OTHER NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

S~}»TEMBER 30.. 2,OU 


Assets 
Cash 
Grant receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 

Total1iabilities 

Fund Balance 

Debt 

Service 

Fund 


$ 


$ 


$ 


Restricted for capital projects 

Total fund balance 

Totalliabilities and fund balance $ 

2004 TIF Capital 
Project Fund 

$ 	 347,714 
248,778 

$ 	 596,492 

$ 277,796 
11,424 

289,220 


307,272 


307,272 


$ 596,492 


Total 

$ 347,714 
248,778 

$ 596,492 

$ 277,796 
11,424 

289,220 


307,272 


307,272 


$ 596,492 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 


OTHER NON·MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


Revenues 
Intergovernmental 
Interest income 

Total revenue 

$ 

Debt Service 
Fund 

2004 TIP Capital 
Project Fund 

$ 927,991 
215 

928,206 

Total 

$ 927,991 
215 

928,206 

Expenditures 
Capital outlay 
Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

1,136,424 
901,869 

2,038,293 

1,157,132 

1,157,132 

1,157,132 

1,136,424 
901,869 

3,195,425 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over expenditures O,()38,293) (228,926) (2,267,219) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources 

2,038,293 

2,038,293 

2,038,293 

2,038,293 

Net change in ftmd balance (228,926) (228,926) 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance - ending $ 

536,198 

$ 307,272 

536,198 

$ 307,272 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL -BUDGETARY BASIS 
MPO CENTRAL AVENUE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 

T()tal revenues 

$ 

Original 
Budget 

121403,309 

12,403,309 

$ 

Final 
Budget 

12,403209 
12,403,309 

Actual 

$ 362,091 
__362,091 

Variance with 
final budget 

Positve 
Q!egaiive! 

$ {I2,041,218) 

{12,041,218) 

EXBENDITURES 
ECQNONUCDEVELOPMENT 

<4ntractual Services 

TopU Expenditures 

12,403,309 

12,403,309 

12,403,309 

12,403,309 

~1,920 

461,920 

11,941,389 

11,941,389 

Exct1ss (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over expenditures (99,8~ (99,829) 

• 

OTIJER FINANCING SOURCES 

Tran/lfers in 
TQtal other fmancing sources 

ExceSs ofrevenues and other 
SOltrces over expenditures $ $ (99,829) $ (99,829) 

Fund balance - October I -
GWbasis 

RecelvableJrevenue adjustments 
Payable/expenditure adjustments 

17,989 
81,840 

Fund balance - September 30 -
GAAPbasis $ 
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I
CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ­
BUDGET AND ACTUAL -BUDGETARY BASIS 


HMGPGRANT 
 I 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Varianee with Ifinal budget 
Original Final Positve 
Budget Budlet Aetual (Negative} 

REVENUES IIntergovernmental $ 140,706 $ 136,121 $ 136,121 

Total revenues 140,706 136,121 136,121 

EXPENDITURES II 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
Other Services & Charges 7,053 
Capital Outlay 141,059 140z332 140,332 ITotal Expenditures 148,112 140,332 140,332 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over expenditures (7,406) (4,211) (4,211) I 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

Transfers in 7,406 4,211 {4,211) 
 I

Total other financing sources 7,406 4,211 (4,211) 

Excess ofrevenues and other 
sources over expenditures $ $ (4,211) $ (4,211) I 

Fund balance - October 1 ­ IGAAPbasis 

Receivable/revenue adjustments 4,211 I 
Fund balance - September 30 -

GAAPbasis $ •. ,-
I 
j 

I 
I 
I 
I 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL -BUDGETARY BASIS 
BULLETPROOF VEST GRANT 

FOR mE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Variance with 
final budget 

Original Final Positve 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

$ 5,371 $ 	 5,280 ,,-$__...;;;;(9-",,1) 
5,280 

__--'-10'-'-,7'-4--'-2 10,742 

f; 

NUES 

10,742

• 
Exe s (deficiency) ofrevenues 

0ter expenditures (5,17..!) (5,462) 

O~R FINANCING SOURCES 

Tr~sfers in 


Tbtal other financing sources 	 5,371 

$ $ 	 (5,462) ;;;.$_...l{.;;,:5,4..;.;6;;;J2) 

6,957 
(1,495) 

$ 

.. 

Exe' ss of revenues and other 
urces over expenditures 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ­

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
PUBLIC SAFETY 

Personnel Services 
Supplies 
Other contractual services 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over expenditures 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL -BUDGETARY BASIS 

DUIGRANT 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 


Original Final 

Budget Budlet Actual 


$ 	 86,300 $ 79,000 $ 60,011 

86,300 79,000 60,011 

83,650 87,741 86,702 
10,150 10,150 9,789 
2,000 2,000 

95,800 99,891 96,491 

(9,500) (20,891) {36,480) 

I 
Variance with I
fmalbudget 


Positve 

(N~ative) I

$ 	 (18,989) 


(18,989) 


I 
1,()39 


361 

2,000 
 I 
3,400 

I
{15,589) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

Transfers in 9,500 20,891 {20,891) 


Total other financing sources 9,500 20,891 	 (20,891) -

Excess of revenues and other 

sources over expenditures $ $ (36,480) $ (36,480) I 
Fund balance· October 1 ­ IGAAPbasis 

Receivab1c1revenue adjustments 38,041 
Payable/expenditure adjustments (802) I 
Fund balance· September 30 -

GAAPbasis $ 759 I 
d 
I 
I 
li 
I 
I 

66 

I 



-----

CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­


BUDGET AND ACTUAL ·BUDGETARY BASIS 

JAG GRANT 
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 


Variance with 
final budget 

Original Final Positve 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

REtENUES 
Int govemmental _$__9,300 $ 30,118 $ 30,118 

'otal revenues 9,300 30,1I8 30,118 .. EtENDITURES
P LICSAFETY 

onnel Services 9,300 27,717 27,717 

T tal Expenditures 9,300 27,717 27,717 

i 
Ex~ (deficiency) of revenues 

0Fer expenditures 2,401 2,401 

O~ER FINANCING SOURCES 
Traisfers out (2,401) 2,401 

Tbtal other financing sources (2,401) 2,401 

ExJss ofrevenues and other 
1urces over expenditures $ $ 2,401 $ 2,401 

1 
i 

FU·balance - October I -
APbasis 

Pay, Ie/expenditure adjustments (2,4Q1.) 

Fun~ balance September 30­

Gr~i' 
$ 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL -BUDGETARY BASIS 
 INARCOTICS GRANT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Variance with I
final budget 

Original Final Positve 
Budlet Budget Aetual {N!Bative} 

REVENUES I 
Intergovernmental $ 30,766 $ 262°00 $ 16,521 $ {9,479) 

Total revenues 30,766 26,000 16,521 

EXPENDITURES 
PUBLIC SAFETY 

Personnel Services 

Total Expenditures 

55,693 

55,693 

56,916 

56,916 

55,196 

55,196 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over expenditures (24,927) (30,916) (38,675) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 24,927 __30,916 

Total other financing sources 

Excess of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures $ 

24,927 

S 

30,916 

(38,675) 

Fund balance· October 1 -
GAAPbasis 

ReceivabIe/revenue adjustment 
Payable/expenditure adjustments 

Fund balance - September 30· 
GAAPbasis $ 

37,796 
879 

{91479) 

__ 1,720 

(7,759) 

(30,916) 

I 

,I 

I 


(30,916) "-
$ P81675) I 

I 
I 
I 
"-
I 
,I 
I 
I 
I 
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CITY Of' D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL -BUDGETARY BASIS 
HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

RE;NUES
Int ovemmental 

tal revenues 

EXrENDlTURES 
PUfiLIC SAFETY 

Sllpplies 

T tal Expenditures 

Ex S8 (deficiency) ofrevenues 
o 	er expenditures 

ER FINANCING SOURCES 

tal other fmancing sources 

Exdess of revenues and other 
Si!urces over expenditures 

!, 

Fwk balance - October 1 ­
qAAPbasis 

Redeivable/revenue adjustment 

Fu balance - September 30­
AAPbasis 

Original 
BUdget 

$ 

Final 
Budget 

6,800 

6,800 

Actual 

Variance with 
final budget 

Positve 
(Negative) 

$ (6,800) 

(6,800) 

6,800 

6,800 

6,800 

6,800 

(6,800) (6,800) 

$ $ (6,800) ;;..$_"";(o.;.i6':;.;80;..;..0) 

6,800 

REcerVED 

DEC a~ 2Ot4 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL -BUDGETARY BASIS 
 IMDOT MALLET ROAD GRANT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Variance with I
final budget 

Original Final Positve 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

REVENUES IIntergovernmental $ 97,003 ;:;,.$____ $ 1,739 
Total revenues 97,003 1,739 

EXPENDITURES I 
PUBLIC WORKS 

Contractual services 12,992 
Capital outlay 108,262 

Total Expenditures 121,254 I 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures (24,251) ;:;,.$____ 1,739 ;:;,.$_---'1:..<.,7:...=3..:...9 I 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 24,251 ~ 

Total other financing sources 24,251 I 
Excess ofrevenues and other 


sources over expenditures $ 1,739 $ _....;.:1,:.;.,;73;,;.9
$ ... I 
, 

Fund balance· October 1 ­ I 
GAAPbasis 

Payable/expenditure adjustments I 
Fund balance - September 30 ­

GAAP basis $ 

I 
~-
I 
II 
I 
I 
I 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE. MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL ·BUDGETARY BASIS 
MDOT SANGANI BLVD GRANT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

RE NUES 
Int,rgovemmental 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget 

$ 

Actual 

Variance with 
final budget 

Positve 
(Negative) 

$ 

'!lota! revenues 

~l~~~::fsS
ontractuaJ services 

apita! outlay , 


. otal Expenditures 

Exqess (deficiency) of revenues 

dver expenditures 
I 

i 
0fER FINANCING SOURCES 
Tr sfers in 

ota! other financing sources 

xcess ofrevenues and other 

I sources over expenditures $ $ $ 


FuJd balance - October 1 ­
<}AAPbasis (71,376)
I 

Re eivable/revenue adjustments 

$ (71,376) 

Pa able/expenditure adjustments 

L 
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I 
CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL -BUDGETARY BASIS JDEBT SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Variance with I
noal budget 

Original Final Positve 
Budget Budget Actual (Nesative) 

REVENUES IIntergovernmental $ ~------- ~$-------
Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES I 
DEBT SERVICE 

Prinicipal payments 1,627,424 1,136,424 1,136,424 
Interest payments 1,349,296 901,86~ 901,869 

Total Expenditures 2,976,720 2,038,293 2,038,293 I 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures (2,976,720) (2,038.293) (2,038.293) I 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 2,7121980 2,038,293 '2,038J93 

Total other financing sources 2,712,980 2,038,293 2,038,293 I 
Excess ofrevenues and other 

sources over expenditures $ ~2631740) $ $ I 
Fund balance October I -

GAAPbasis I 
Receivable/revenue adjustments 
Payable/expenditure adjustments 

Fund balance - September 30 ­ I 
GAAPbasis 

-
?I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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CITY OF D'IBERVII.LE, MISSISSIPPI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL -BUDGETARY BASIS 
2004 TlF CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Variance with 
final budget 

Original Final Positve 

RE~NUES 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

In=vernmental S 1,920,000 S 1,920,000 $ 679,213 S (1,240,787) 
In income 200 

rre'm~ --.h2.2O,OOO 1,920,200 (1,240,772) 

EX ENDITURES 
dapital Outlay 2,420,000 2!420Z000 11552z088 

lotai Expenditures 2,420,000 2,420,000 1,552,088 

EXdess (deficiency) ofrevenues 

o~er expenditures
; 

(500,000) (499,800) (188,484) (2,792,860) 

R FINANCING SOURCES 

tal other financing sources 

ss of revenues and other 

S S (188,484) S (2,792,860) 

536,198 

Re ivablelrevenue adjustments 248,778 
(289,220) 

S 3071272 

Pay blelexpenditure adjustments 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL ·BUDGETARY BASIS 
 IPROMENADE TIF FUND 

FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Variance with I 
tlnal budget 

Original Final Positve 
Budlet Budget Actual (N!iative} 

REVENUES I
Intergovernmental $11,375,000 S 12,288,141 $ 12,288,141 $ 

Total revenues 11,375,000 12,288,141 12,288,141 

IEXPENDITURES 
Capital Outlay 11 13751000 11,322,560 11,322,560 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Total other fmancing sources 

Excess ofrevenues and other 
sources over expenditures 

Fund balance - October 1 -
GAAPbasis 

Receivable/revenue adjustments 
Payable/expenditure adjustments 

Fund balance - September 30 -
GAAPbasis 

llz375,000 11,322,560 11,322,560 I 
965,581 

I 

I 


$ 965,581 ;;..$___ 

Is; 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
t 
I 
I 

$ 965,581 
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. 

SECTIONnI 

part of the City of D'Iberville's comprehensive annual financial report presents more -
det 'led information as a.context for understanding what the information in the financial 
5ta ments, note disclosures, and required supplementary infonnation says about the 
go enunent's overall financial health. 

I 
Co+tents Pages 

i 

Finrmcial Trends 

Th se schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
's financial perfonnance and well-being have changed over time 

Thefe schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most 
sigtllificant local revenue source, the property tax. 

De . Capacity 

The e schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
Ci 's current levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability to 
issu additional debt. 

Demographic and Economic Information 
I 

The~e schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
und rstand the environment within which the City's financial activities 
take place. 

Ope ating Information 

The ,e schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the City's fmancial report relates to 
the rce the City provides and the activities it performs. 

82-85 

86-88 

89-91 

92-93 

es: Unless noted otherwise, the information in these schedules has been derived from available 
cial data from prior audit reports for the relevant year. 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
__~_,~______._______~____~______...I'!CE1lO.sITlONBY,'cQMl'ONENT 

Lalil ten fisr.al yean 

Governmental activities 
Net investment in capilal assets 
Restric~ 
Unreslricted 

Total governmental activities net position 

2004 

$ 3,746,953 

813,828 
$ 4,560,781 

2005 

$ 3,586,010 

1,600,782 
$ 5,186,792 

2006 

$ 2,513,525 

5,059,135 
$ 7,572,660 

Fiscal Year 
2007 2008 

$ 4,737,189 $ 4,873,620 

6,691,430 6,580,913 
$ 11,428,619 $ 11,454,533 

$ 11,184,759 

2010 

$ 12,266,211 

4,901,718 
$ 17,167,929 

2011 

$ 19,453,860 

3,238,907 
$ 22,692,767 

2012 

$ 23,552,829 
t3 

6,564,527 
$ 30,117,369 

2013 

$ 27,113,673 
34,345 

6,884,925 
$ 34,032,943 

Business-type lienvilies 
Net investment in capital assets 
Reslricted 
Unrestricted 

Total business-type a£livities net position 

$ 3,957,277 

821,220 
$ 4,778,497 

:5 5,793,547 

1,095,843 
$ 6,889,390 

:5 5,304,983 

1,362,388 
$ 6,667,371 

:5 7,776,824 

658,267 
$ 8,435,091 

$ 8,063,220 

2,057,411 
$ 10,120,631 

$ 14.308,417 
622,095 

$ 14,762,097 
469,960 

1,217,073 
$ 16,449,130 

$ 13,879,151 
735,540 

2,579,513 
$ 17,194,204 

$ 14,468,775 
712,083 

2,758,476 
$ 17,939,334 

$ 15,068,711 
571,056 

2,733,713 
$: 18,373,480 

Primary government 
Nel investment in capital assets 
Reslric~ 

Unreslric~ 

Total primary government nel position 

$ 7,704,230 

1,635,048 
$ 9,339,278 

$ 9,379,557 

2,696,625 
$ 12,076,182 

$ 7,818,508 

6,421,523 
S 14,240,031 

$ 12,514,013 

7,349,697 
$ 19,863,710 

:5 12,936,840 

8,638,324 
S 21,575,164 

$ 25,493,176 
622,095 

5,249,769 
$ 31,365,040 

$ 27,028,308 
469,960 

6,118,791 
S 33,617,059 

$ 33,333,011 
735,540 

5,818,420 
$ 39,886,971 

$ 38,021,604 
712,096 

9,323,003 
$ 48,056,703 

$ 42,182,384 
605,401 

9,618,638 
$ 52.406.423 
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CITY OJ' O'mERVILLE. MISSISSIPPI 
CllANGl:S IN NET POSITION 

Last Ten FiKal Veml 

Fiscal Year 
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 ~2 2013 

ExpelIIU 
Govemmmtal activities; 

Gentnt gIlvcnuncnt $ 1,441,903 $ 1,798,446 :Ii 1,698,731 :Ii 2,056,479 $ 3,300,774 $ 3,955,407 $ 3,773,443 $ 3,006,599 $ 2,636,424 $ 2,894,304 
Public safety 2,451,212 2,093,957 2,046,296 2,500,973 3,910,276 4,413,359 4,550,491 3,783,045 4,038,219 4,333,026 
Publicworb 1,116,099 2,847,387 13,775,793 3,549,016 2,110,843 1,847,908 2,030,646 2,011,478 2,821,096 4,597,636 
EcDD.amic development 146,863 89,363 266,433 233,518 140,666 449,588 521,426 627,794 491,902 966,759 
Clllture and I'Ccn:ation 677,321 661,217 471,538 411,053 955,351 1,019,707 1,043,907 698,496 670,948 500,332 
~t 373,040 393,960 401,592 368,244 336,868 598,116 499,316 578~76 681,159 903,741 

Total govemJnmtal activities 6,206,438 7,884,330 18,660,383 9,119,283 10,754,778 12,284,085 12,419,229 10,705,688 11,339,748 14,195,798 

lmsiness-type activities: 
Water and Sewer 2,041,352 2,030,491 2,271,588 2,251,776 2,771,144 2,607,693 3,251,561 2,814,652 3,078,738 3,327,429 
Watcrfi:unt Development 39,693 349,306 164,621 170,645 139,341 135,745 136,762 185211 221,874 

Total business-type activities 2,070,184' 2,620,894 2,416,397 2.941,789 2,747,034 3,387,306 2,951,414 3,264,249 3,549,303 

Total primary gIlwmment $ 8,247,790 $ 9,954,514 $ 21,281~77 S 11,535,680 $ 13,696~67 $ 15,031!119 $ 15,806,535 S 13,657,102 S 14;603,997 ~745,101 

f'ntp'am RevelBlell 
Gowmmental activities: 

CIIlu:gr;s for scrvU:es: 
Gcllc:ral r,uvc:mment 193,432 287,988 452,255 
Public aafety 35,839 478,094 389,147 542,378 562,981 761,096 759,943 870,924 
Publicworb 213,704 375,928 351,254 366,771 403,018 452,410 388,814 425,154 455,630 343,914 
Ecoaamic De'¥dopmeat 171,129 174,645 221,178 255,046 388,103 411,740 194,818 231,488 404,051 342,811 
CllIture ad recreation 66,890 61,771 1,070 10,305 24,378 23,535 

Opaating gnmts and cOIIlribatiOlUl 117,791 1,695,so8 13,468,006 2,268,587 2,007,504 751,053 309,162 582,624 625,290 2,725,906 
Capilal graats 8IId coatribatioas 321,038 100,748 143,183 507,955 81088~53 4,042~55 5,729,042 5,557,628 4,718,631 

Total govcmmental activities 1,083,!!84 2,732~27 14,492,693 3,512,751 ~!695,727 ,10~246,1~ 5,498,230 7,739,709 7,826,920 9,025,721 

lmsineas-typc activities: 
0Iarges for scrvU:es: 

Water and sewer 1,949,329 2,147,830 2,109,633 2,663,471 3,828,174 3,344,445 3,279,790 3,432,932 3,641,661 3,789,078 
Watiriollt Development 4,439 7,549 20,302 21,958 24,188 19,962 15,560 6,586 

Opaatbtg graats and coatriINtiOll9 145,538 119,711 479,208 73,728 106,123 
Capital graats and contribations 193,732 253,768 229,681 1,155,139 162,177 3,402,263 167,787 

Total busineBB-type actvities 2,288299 2,525,748 2,339~14 3,826,159 4,489,861 6,768,666 3,471,765 3,4S:f,894 3,730,949 3,901,787 

Total primaly govemmmt 

Net Itevenue/(J:xpense) 
Govemmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total priIDuy govemment net revelUleJ(elCpCI\6e) S 

3,372,583 .. 

(5,122,454) 
247,247 

(4,875,207) $ 

5,258,175 16,832,007 

(5,151,903) (4,167,690) 
455264 (281,580} 

(4,696,339) :! (4,449,270) 

(COIItinued) 

$ 

7,338,910 

(5,606,532) 
1,409,762 

(4,196,710) $ 

8,185,588 

(7,059,051) 
1,548.072 

(5,510,979) $ 

17,014,800 

(2,037,951) 
4,021,632 

1,983.681 

8,969,995 

(6,920,999) 
84,459 

$ (6,836,540) 

11,192,603 

(2,965,979) 
501,480 

$ (2,464,499) 

11,557,869 

(3,512,828) 
466,700 

S (3,(}46,128) 

12,927,508 

(5,170,017) 
352,484 

S (4,817,593) 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

CHANGES IN NET POSrnON 


Last Ten Flsc"l Years 


Fiscal Year 
2004 2005 2006 2001 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

General Revenues and Other 
Change. In Net Position 
Governmental activities 
Taxes 
Property taxes $ 1,503,651 $ 1,634,909 $ 1,900,830 $ 1,191,926 $ 1,138,561 $ 2,151,388 $ 2,286,520 $ 2,603,311 $ 2,139,560 $ 2,838,888 
Sales taxes 3,358,810 3,711,820 5,484,802 4,888,068 4,528,094 4,400,504 5,546,989 5,605,223 5,128,228 5,960,425 
Franchise taxes 219,291 242,459 233,441 248,205 294,500 311,311 345,495 335,954 319,186 330,153 

Unrestricted investment earnings 
Insurance proceeds 
Lease re venue 

6,519 

81,690 

20,960 

86,386 

94,271 
511,999 

91,815 

190,394 
49,585 
92,621 

119,844 

132,921 

101,104 
18,668 

142,351 

121,158 
11,910 

113,965 

31,601 
10,124 
95,311 

20,538 
21,584 
95,195 

44,135 
35,385 

112,545 
Miscellaneous 
Gain on asset disposal 
Tramfem 
Total governmental activities 

31,610 196,515 

5,953,109 

281,181 6,849 

1,213,654 

20,430 
6,190 

<193,848} 
6,106,692 

449,871 

(2,019,006) 
5,502,863 

629,890 

(123,165~ 
8,939,422 

23,552 

(220,811} 
8,490,811 

2,410,010 

(212,112} 
11,188,129 

351,583 

9,680,314 

BUSiness-type activities: 
Property taxes 11,014 11,340 11,834 26,414 25,804 22,658 31,619 36,190 
Investment earnings 1,525 18,341 42,541 52,421 41,605 1,034 168 65 14 13 
Miscellaneous 20,593 193,848 2,019,006 123,165 220,811 246,611 5,406 
Total business-type activities 28,U8 18,341 63,161 259,281 2,106,514 149,131 243,594 218,430 42.269 

Total primary government $ 5,229,869 $ 5,911,456 $ 8,651,918 $ 1,331,415 $ 6,965,919 $ 1,609,311 $ 9,088,559 $ 8,134,411 $ 11,466~59 ~122.583 

Change in Net Position 
Governmental activities 
Busincss-type activities 

19,291 
215,365 

801,206 
413,911 

4,430,121 
(222,OI9} 

1,661,122 
1,413,523 

(352,359) 
1.801,359 

3,464,912 
6,128,146 

2,018,423 
233,596 

5,524,838 
145.014 

1,615,301 
145,130 

4,510,231 
394,153 

Total primary government $ __ 354,662 $ 1,21.5.111 $ 4,208,108 $ 3,140.645 $ 1,455.000 $ 9,593,058 $ 2,252,019 $ 6,269,912 :I: 8,420,431 $ 4,904,990 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 


Last Ten Fiseal Years 


2004 2005 2006 2007 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
General fund 
Res1ricted $ $ $ 1,193,239 $ 555,048 $ $ $ $ 197,031 $ 34,151 $ 34,345 
Unassigned 1,268,475 1,768,071 4,130,000 7,682,079 7,307,438 5,058,465 6,169,669 3,674,328 7,668,305 7,867,755 

Total General fund $ 1,268,475 $ 1,768,071 $ 5,323,239 $ 8,237,127 5> 7,307,438 $ 5,058,465 $ 6,169,669 $ 3,871,359 5> 7,702,456 5> 7,902,100 
= 

All other governmental funds 
Restricted for capital projects $ 1,475,075 $ 5> $ $ 636,085 $ 534,225 $ 535,027 $ 535,741 $ 536,198 $ 1,289,218 
Unassigned reported in 

Specilll revenue funds {18,8921 {92,089} {72,357) (71,3761 (70,617) 
Total all other governmental funds 5> 1,456,183 $ 5> (92,089) 5> (72,357) $ 636,085 $ 534,225 5> ·535,027 5> 535,741 5> 464,822 5> 1,218,601 
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Revenues 
Taxes 
Property 
Sales 
Franchise 

licenses and Pennits 
Intergovernmental 
Other grant 

Charges for services 

Fines 

Interest 

Lease revenue 

Miscellaneous 


Total revenues 

Expenditures 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Economic Development 
Culture and recreation 
Capital outlay 
Debt Service: 
Principal 

Interest 

Other 


iTotal expenditures 
1 

Excess ofrevenues over 
[(under) expenditures 
i 

10th". Fin.ndDg Sour ... 
(Uses) 
! Insurance proceeds 
I Sale ofproperty 

Issuance ofbonds 

Issuance ofnotes 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

otal other financing sources 

(uses) 

et change in fund balances 

ebt service as a percentage 
fnoncapital expenditures 

CITY OF D'IBERVll.,LE, MISSISSIPPI 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

$ 1,481,855 $ 1,634,909 $ 1,900,830 
3,358,870 3,771,820 5,484,802 

219,291 242,459 233,447 
171,128 174,645 221,178 
432,096 1,796,256 13,468,006 

246,201 473,538 351,254 
193,432 287,988 452,255 

6,578 20,960 94,277 
91,875 

176,284 282,961 281,187 
6,285,735 8,685,536 22,579,111 

1,280,131 1,513,474 1,569,045 
2,511,734 2,546,519 2,087,249 
1,109,824 3,126,195 13,904,413 

146,667 86,378 266,433 
633,821 681,370 465,682 

1,694,629 1,267,400 

349,893 429,748 645,695 
261,537 393,960 401,592 

63,306 
10,108,350 19,340,109 

(1,736,8762 (1,422,814) 3,239,002 

511,999 

3,200,000 
239,521 624,130 1,755,715 
611,430 823,708 1,047,287 

(611,430) (823,7082 (1,047,287) 

3,439,521 624,130 2,267,714 

$ 1,702,645 $ (798,684) $ 5,506,716 

$ 1,797,926 
4,888,068 

248,205 
255,046 

2,411,770 

$ 1,738,561 
4,528,094 

294,500 
388,103 

2,515,459 

403,844 
442,091 
190,394 
92,627 

10,736,820 

403,018 
389,147 
179,845 
132,921 

17,433 
10,587,081 

2,118,234 
2,543,618 
3,545,009 

227,413 
494,735 

3,189,838 
3,761,008 
2,110,959 
2,614,578 

958,734 

730,109 
382,082 

703,709 
351,766 

10,041,200 13,690,592 

p,103,511) 

49,585 2,849 
9,990 

2,685,000 

1,112,191 
(1,112,191) 

1,434,083 
p,627,931) 

2,503,991 

$ 745,205 $ (599,520) 

10.20% 10.03% 5.41% 11.08% 7.71% 

RECEIVED 
RECeiVED 

bEC a~ 2at~ 
Ole 0~ 20~ 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES a GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Continued) 

Revenues 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 I 
Taxes 

Property $ 2,151,388 $ 2,286,520 $ 2,603,312 $ 2,739,560 $ 2,838,888 

Sales 4,400,504 5,546,989 5,605,223 5,728,228 5,960,425 
 IFranchise 311,371 345,495 335,954 319,186 330,753 


Licenses and Pennits 411,740 194,818 231,488 404,051 321,498 

Intergovenunental 8,839,606 4,351,617 5,750,221 8,350,273 7,465,850 

Other grant 561,444 
 I 
Charges for services 493,328 430,292 473,838 504,461 396,383 

Fines 501,460 521,503 712,412 710,508 774,394 

Interest 107,704 127,758 37,606 20,538 44,735 
 I 
Lease revenue 142,357 113,965 105,622 117,712 134,280 

Miscellaneous 449,877 629,889 23,552 54,082 112,949 


Total revenues J7,809,335 14,548,846 16,440,672 18,948,599 18,380,155 
 I 
Expenditures 
General government 3,408,716 3,686,946 3,114,571 2,327,986 2,670,504 

Public safety 3,956,533 4,198,555 3,504,730 3,745,186 4,010,037 
 I 
Public works 1,586,540 1,343,439 1,400,956 2,143,274 3,865,061 

Economic Development 472,525 490,613 605,323 482,970 963,795 

Culture and recreation 983,889 964,359 590,895 548,560 393,878 
 I 
Capital outlay 6,671,174 5,480,578 11,699,838 4,162,095 16,051,236 

Debt Service: 

Principal 747,207 766,744 1,086,539 1,108,472 1,136,424 
 I
Interest 423,222 411,830 577,849 641,087 901,869 
Other 

Total expenditures 18,249,806 17,343,064 22,580,701 15,159,630 29,992,804 I 
Excess ofrevenues over 

(under) expenditures (440,471) (2,794,218) (6,140,029) 3,788,969 (11,612,649) 
 I 
Other Financing Sources 
(Uses) 
Insurance proceeds 18,668 11,970 10,724 27,584 35,385 I
Sale of property 4,092 17,419 52,580 250,434 244,522 

Issuance ofbonds 4,000,000 4,000,000 12,468,141 

Issuance ofnotes 

Transfers in 1,653,147 3,333,600 3,913,267 2,200,605 2,194,779 
 I 
Transfers out {3,732,153~ ~3,456,765) {4,134,138l ~2,412,777~ {2, 194, 779} 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) (2,056,246) 3,906,224 3,842,433 65,846 12,748,048 I 
Net change in fund balances $ (2,496,717) $ 1,112,006 $ (2,297,596) $ 3,854,815 $ 1,135,399 

I 
Debt service as a percentage 

ofnoncapital expenditures 11.25% 11.03% J8.06% 18.92% 17.12% 
 I 


I 
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 Fiscal 

Year 


2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

CITY OF D'ffiERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


Property Sales Franchise 

Tax Tax Tax 


$ 1,503,651 $ 3,358,870 $ 219,291 $ 
1,634,909 3,771,820 242,459 , 
1,917,844 5,484,802 233,447 
1,809,266 4,888,068 248,205 
1,738,561 4,528,094 294,500 
2,151,388 4,400,504 311,371 
2,286,520 5,546,989 345,945 
2,603,312 5,605,223 335,954 
2,739,560 5,728,228 319,186 
2,838,888 5,960,425 330,753 

Total 

5,081,812 
5,649,188 
7,636,093 
6,945,539 
6,561,155 
6,863,263 
8,179,454 
8,544,489 
8,786,974 
9,130,066 
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I 
CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 
Current Fiscal Year & Nine Years Ago 

I 
2013 2004 

Taxable Percentage Taxable Percentage 
Assessed ofTota! Assessed ofTota! I 

Taxpayer Value Rank Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Value 

Promenade $ 5,085,812 1 5.40% I
Wal-mart Real Estate Bus. Trust 3,410,231 2 3.62% 1,080,680 4 1.92% 

Mississippi Power Company 2,964,342 3 3.15% 

Landmark 2,171,183 4 2.31% 

Target 2,026,712 5 2.15% 
 I 
Lowe's Home Centers, Inc. 1,950,067 6 2.07% 852,822 5 1.51% 

Arbor View II, LLC 1,868,449 7 1.98% 1,572,346 2.79% 

EPT Biloxi, Inc. 1,259,634 8 1.34% 

Encore D'Iberville Hotel, LLC 1,165,364 9 1.24% 

D'Iberville Partners 1,033,929 10 1.10% 

Lowes Home Centers 1,274,232 2 2.26% 

Wal-mart Supercenter #2715 1,235,801 3 2.19% 

Biloxi Lodge LP 480,233 6 0.85% 

Indian River Inn Corp. 478,531 7 0.85% 

Arbor View Investments 436,760 8 0.78% 


Total 22,935,723 24.36% 7,411,405 13.15% 


Other Taxpayers 71,213,300 75.64% 48,943,930 86.85% 
 I 
Total All Taxpayers $ 94,149,023 100.00% $ 56,355,335 100.00010 

Source: Office of the County Tax Collector I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 


PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLI,ECTIONS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 


Calendar Total Tax 
Year Ended Levy for Total Collections to Date 
December 31 Fisca1 Year Amount Percentage of levy 

.. 


2003 1,435,525 1,416,999 98.71% 

2004 1,512,014 1,503,651 99.45% 

2005 1,644,461 1,634,909 99.42% 

2006 1,669,743 1,809,266 108.36% 

2007 1,684,219 1,738,561 103.23% 

2008 2,061,819 2,151,388 104.34% 

2009 2,182,284 2,286,520 104.78% 

2010 2,477,883 2,603,312 105.06% 

2011 2,552,491 2,740,164 107.35% 
2012 2,622,030 2,838,888 108.27% 
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City of D'Iberville 

Taxable Sales by Category 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


Year Ended June 30, 

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

Automotive 
Machinery, Equipment, and Supplies 
Food and Beverage 
Furniture and Fixtures 
Public Utilities 
Apparel and General Merchandise 
Lumber and Building Materials 
Miscellaneous Retail 
Miscellaneous Services 
Contracting 
Recreation 

$ 88,058 
10,148 
90,193 
20,078 
18,402 

181,793 
30,942 
30,078 
11,810 

1,332 
9,041 

$ 52,228 
10,138 
88,164 
20,491 

185,269 
31,341 
28,296 
11,987 

1,204 
9,363 

$ 51,970 
6,491 

87,640 
20,180 

185,924 
35,132 
26,216 
14,655 
1,611 

__9,220 

$ 46,606 
4,578 

82,237 
16,560 

163,310 
36,196 
25,792 
13,477 
1,960 

$ 59,994 
4,807 

68,799 
4,689 

133,095 
40,335 
17,963 
11,139 
2,236 

$ 71,578 
6,038 

69,013 
7,451 

124,232 
47,661 
16,396 
12,655 
6,008 

$ '73,559 
5,378 

68,788 
8,463 

135,968 
70,504 
20,270 
12,135 
2,611 

$ 87,556 
4,626 

56,634 
6,468 

140,898 
85,471 
19,310 
14,107 
3,212 

$ 64,022 
3,060 

40,279 
3,947 

113,143 
37,692 
12,497 
8,424 
2,523 

$ 65,373 
3,080 

37,061 
4,086 

106,980 
34,762 
13,368 
6,708 
2,024 

Total $ 491,875 $ 438,481 $ 439,039 $ 390,716 $ 343,057 $ 361,032 $ 397,676 $ 418,282 $ 285,587 $ 273,442 

Source: Mississippi State Tax Commission 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
.. :0 aTlOS OF OlI'IST41'WJNG DEBT B¥-.T¥P'l!iE--­

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

GoveIl1111ental Activities Business-type Activities 
Tax Increment General Special Total Percentage 

Fiscal Financing Capital Notes Obligation Obligation Revenue Notes Capital Primary ofPersonal Per 
Year Bonds Leases PaY!'ble Bonds Bonds Bonds Payable Leases GoveIl1111ent Income Capita 

2004 7,755,000 239,521 127,677 5,970,000 2,414,813 16,507,011 12.01% 2,061 
2005 7,435,000 300,404 581,176 5,770,000 2,453,849 16,540,429 11.61% 2,030 

2006 6,969,160 703,190 1,754,250 5,560,000 2,665,900 90,417 17,742,917 14.08% 2,512 
2007 6,469,160 517,958 1,709,373 5,340,000 2,466,664 73,586 16,576,741 10.97% 1,997 
2008 8,644,160 725,744 1,281,462 5,110,000 2,302,494 56,151 18,120,011 10.93% 2,183 
2009 8,094,160 528,536 1,281,462 4,870,000 2,126,843 38,090 16,939,091 12.32% 2,135 
2010 7,479,160 376,793 1,281,462 4,000,000 4,785,000 2,114,723 19,381 20,056,519 11.15% 2,114 
2011 6.734,160 230,254 1,281,462 3,805,000 4,000,000 7,350,000 1,909,922 25,310,798 14.09% 2,566 
2012 5,880,000 175,942 1,281,462 3,605,000 4,000,000 6,955,000 1,696,860 23,594,264 12.61% 2,392 
2013 17,160,000 119,518 1,281,462 3,395,000 3,850,000 6,530,000 1,475,187 33,811,167 l3.57% 2,959 

Note: 
Details of the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
Demographic and economic data can be found on page 85 ofthis report. 
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CITY OF D'ffiERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


Debt limit 

Net debt applicable to limit 

$ 

2004 

7,521,000 $ 

2005 

8,453,000 $ 

2006 

9,098,000 

1,281,462 

$ 9,145,000 

2008 

$ 9,145,000 

1,281,462 

2009 

$ 11,864,508 

1,281,462 

2010 

$ 12,283,204 

5,281,462 

2011 

$ 13,915,807 

2012 

$ 13,769,765 

2013 

$ 14,122,353 

__4_,676,462 

Net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage ofdebt limit 0.00% 0.00% 14.09% 14.01% 14.01% 10.80% 43.00% 36.55% 35.49% 33.110/0 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for FtKal Year 2013 

Total assessed value 

Debt limit (15% oftotal assessed value) 
Debt applicable to limit: 

General obligation bonds 
Less: Amount set aside for repayment 

of general obligation debt 
Total net debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt margin 

$ 94,149,023 

14,122,353 

4,676,462 

4,676,462 
$ 9,445,891 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 


Sewer Revenue Bonds 

Fiscal 
Yemj 

Sewer 
Charges and 

Other 

Less: 
Operating 
Expenses 

Net 
Available 
Revenue 

Debt Service 
Principal Interest Coverage 

200 
200 
200 
200 
200 
200 
201 
2011 
201 
2013 

1,977,447 
2,265,967 
2,]67,903 
2,726,844 
3,828,174 
3,344,445 
3,279,790 
3,432,932 
3,641,661 
3,789,078 

1,270,415 
1,264,851 
1,540,835 
1,457,842 
2,435,289 
2,293,747 
2,774,141 
2,433,664 
2,728,244 
3,000,421 

707,032 
1,001,116 

627,068 
1,269,002 
1,392,885 
1,050,698 

505,649 
999,268 
913,417 
788,657 

195,000 
200,000 
210,000 
220,000 
230,000 
240,000 
250,000 
310,000 
395,000 
425,000 

297,200 
288,913 
280,412 
271,173 
335,855 
251,143 
240,343 
210,169 
293,013 
282,863 

143.65% 
204.76% 
127"87% 
258.36% 
246.16% 
213.93% 
]03.12% 
192.10% 
132.76% 
111.41% 

Notes: 

• 
Details regarding the government's outstanding debt can be f01md in the notes to the financial statements. 
Sewer harges and other includes investment earnings, ad valorem recieipts but not impact fees . 
Opera g expenses do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization. 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC DATA 


Last ten Fiscal Years 


Personal Per 
Income Capita 

Fiscal (expressed Personal Unemployment 
Year ' Population in thousands) Income Rate 

2004 8,122 139,308 17,152 5.4% 
2005 8,267 144,631 17,495 23.8% 
2006 7,285 130,001 17,845 8.4% 
2007 7,423 135,113 18,202 5.0% 
2008 7,423 135,112 18,202 6.0% 
2009 7,928 137,390 17,330 7.5% 
2010 9,486 179,930 18,968 9.2% 
2011 9,865 179,632 18,209 9.6% 
2012 9,865 187,119 18,968 8.6% 
2013 11,426 249,212 21,811 7.8% 

1. 	 Data for reported years taken from U. S. Census Bureau. 
Other years estimated by City ofD'Iberville. 

2. Estimated by City ofD'Iberville using 2000 and 2010 census data. 
3. 2000 census data adjusted 2% annually for inflation. 
4. Population multiplied by per capita increase. 
5. Education information and school enrollment 

information is not available 
6. Jump in unemployment in 2005 was result ofHurricane Katrina 

'It, 

I 

I 

IMedian 

Age 
;,; 

34.7 	
I 

35.0 	

I35.3 
35.7 
35.7 	 I33.5 
36.9 
32.3 
33.0 	

I 
33.0 	
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~ 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILIJE, MISSISSIPPI 

PRINICIPAL EMPLOYERS 


Current Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago 

2013 2004 
Percentage 

of Total 
Percentage 
ofTotal 

Em,elo .er Em,eloyees Rank Em,eloyment Employees Rank Employment 
i 

Supercenter 481 9.3% 350 1 15.1% 
Lowes 133 2 2.6% 175 2 7.6% 
Target 130 3 2.5% 
City of 'Iberville 100 4 1.9% 52 8 2.2% 
D'lberv lle High School 100 5 1.9% 
D'Ibe He Middle School 97 6 1.9% 
D'Iberv lle Elementary School· 95 7 1.8% 
Olive arden 70 8 1.3% 
Red Lo ster 56 9 1.1% 

55 10 1.1% 
WinD lXle 125 3 5.4% 
Fourni Seafood 65 5 2.8% 
Gollott eafood 80 4 3.5% 
Astro Fprd 64 6 2.8% 

i 

Baysidd Chrysler 53 7 2.3% 
MandaI Pontiac 48 9 2.1% 
Seymoqr & Sons 45 10 1.9% , 

1,317 25.4% 1,057 45.6%Total • 

Other F1PIOyerS 3,874 74.6% 1,260 54.4% 

Total E~nployment 100.0% 17 100.0% 
,I 

I 

Total e ployment estimate information obtained from the Bureau of Labor Statistics 
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CITY OF D'ffiERVll..LE, MISSISSIPPI 

FULL -TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT 


EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTIONIPROGRAM 

Last ten calendar years 


2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Function 

General government 
City Management 3 3 3 -3 2 2 2 2 2 1 
Finance 1 2 I I 3 3 4 3 3 2 
Building 3 2 3 6 6 6 6 4 4 4 
Judicial 3 3 4 5 5 4 3 2 4 4 
Planning 5 4 4 4 

Public Safety 
PoliceI 0 0 0 1 7 26 28 29 30 35 
Fire 19 21 24 23 28 28 26 25 24 25 

Highways & Streets 
Maintenance 5 6 9 8 10 9 16 13 17 16 

Culture & Recreation 9 8 6 10 11 19 6 6 5 7 

Water 3 10 10 11 13 12 12 14 12 12 

TOTAL 46 55 60 68 85 109 108 102 105 110 


I Police protection was provided by the Harrison County Sheriff's Dept through an interlocal 

agreement until September 30, 2008 when the City assumed responsibility for its operation. 


2 Water operations and maintenance were outsourced through Eco Resources until 
Septen'lber 30, 2005, when the City assumed responsibility for its operation. 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 


Last ten calendar years 


Function 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Fire 
Number of calls answered 

Highways and streets 
Street resurfacing (miles) I 

973 

N/A 

819 

N/A 

1030 

5.67 

1091 

30.38 

901 

2.84 

1062 

2.9 

1086 

5.6 

1126 

1.8 

1209 

3 

1244 

1.4 

Water 
New connections 
Waters main breaks 
Average daily consumption 

(thousands of gallons) 

N/A 
58 

NiA 

17 
114 
649 

58 
142 
744 

104 
81 

853 

97 
II7 
964 

75 
71 

949 

74 
21 

917 

111 
43 
845 

30 
57 

777 

30 
48 
916 

Wastewaterl 

Average daily sewage treatment 
(thousands of gallons) 

984.66 902.11 746.63 855.75 907.47 836.41 1057.73 917.4 995.26 1061.1 

I Data not available until 2006 

2 Data provided by Harrison County Wastewater Utility Authority 
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CITY OF D'mERVILLE~ MISSISSIPPI 

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION 


Last ten calendar years 

Function 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Public Safety 
Police: 

Patrol units 
Fire stations 

21 28 
1 

26 
1 

28 31 33 
1 

44 
I 

42 41 
1 

43 
1 

Highways and streets 
Streets (miles) 
Streetlights 
Traffic signals 
School signals 

55.14 
1250 
20 
8 

55.54 
1250 
20 
8 

55.93 
1250 
20 
8 

56.33 
1250 
20 
8 

56.72 
1250 
20 
8 

58.05 
1250 
20 
8 

58.05 
1250 
20 
8 

58.05 
1250 
20 
8 

58.05 
1330 
20 
8 

62.62 
1392 
24 
10 

Culture and recreation 
Parks acreage 
Parks 
Tennis courts 
Community centers 

55 
5 
10 
1 

55 
5 
10 

55 
5 
10 

55 
5 
10 
1 

55 
5 
10 
1 

55 
5 
10 

55 
5 
10 

55 
5 
10 
1 

55 
5 
10 

117 
4 
8 

Water 
Water mains (miles) 
Fire hydrants 
Number ofwater wells 
Maximum daily capacity 

(thousands ofgallons) 

56.69 
425 

6 
5270 

56.69 
441 

6 
5270 

56.69 
443 

6 
5270 

56.69 
452 

6 
5270 

56.69 
461 

6 
5270 

57.65 
506 

6 
5270 

57.72 
531 

6 
5270 

57.72 
535 

6 
5270 

57.72 
675 

6 
5270 

82.99 
706 

5 
5270 

Sewer 
Sanitary sewers (miles) 
Maximum daily treatment capacity 

(thousands ofgallons) 

50.67 
1120 

51.19 
1120 

51.71 
1120 

52.23 
1120 

52.74 
1120 

72.81 
1120 

70.75 
1120 

70.75 
1120 

71.31 
2620 

84.89 
2620 
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CITY OF D'IBERVILL.E, MISSISSIPPI 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS


• Year Ended September 30,2013 


Federal Grant No. I 
Grantor Federal AgencylPass-Through CFDA Pass-Through Federal 
A!enc~lPro~ Title Number Ex:pendi~ 

U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development 
Passed through Mississippi Development Authority 

CommWlity Development Block Grant Entitlement Grants 14.218 
CommWlity Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grants 14.218 

Total U.S. Department of Rousing and Urban Development 

U.S. Department of Interior, Fish and Wildlife Services 
Passed through Mississippi Department of Marine RCSQun:es 

Clean Vessel Act Program IS.616 
Coastal Impact Assistance Program 15.668 

Total U.S. Department of the Interior 

U.S. Department ofJustice 
Bulletproof V est Partnel1!hip Program 16.607 

Passed through Miasissippi Department ofPublic Safety 
Division ofPublic Safety Planning 

Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grants 16.710 
ARRA - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.803 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 

Passed through !he City ofGulfport, Mississippi 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 

State and Local Equitable Sharing 16.922 

Total U.S. Department of Justice 

U.S. Deparunent of Transportation 
Passed through Mississippi Department of Transportation 

Highway Planning and COlllltruction Grant 20.205 
Highway Planning and COlllllruction Grant 20.205 
ARM - Highway Planning and Construction Grant 20.20S 

Passed through Mississippi Department ofPublic Safety 
Alcohol Traffic Safety - DUl Grant 20.600 
Occupants Restraint Grant 20.600 

Total U.S. Department ofTtlInsportation 

Executive Office of the President 

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area 9S.ool 

Total Executive Office of the President 

U.S. Department ofHomeland Security 
Passed through Mississippi Emergency Management Agency 

Public Assistance Disaster Grants 97.036 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 

Passed through the Mississippi Department of Public Safety 

Office ofHomeland Security 

Homeland Security Grant Progr.lI11 97.067 

Total U.S. Department ofHomeland Security 

Total Federal Financial Assistance 

NOTES TO S!:lmtlULE; 

I. 	This schedule was prepared using the same basis ofaccounting and the same sigoificant policies, 
as applicable. used for the financial statements. 

2. The City bas S I ,630,025 in outstanding t'EMA Special Community Disaster Loans 
wbicb payment On these loans is deferred until FYE 20 16• 

• Denotes major federal award program 

RI09-I66-04-KCR 
RI09·166-03·KCR 

Ii 2,1S8,140 
348,762 

2,S06,902 

S-011-Dffi-V-16 
MSR 701 

356 
73,135 

73,491 

2013BUBX13069332 6,040 

20 12·UM-WX-01 J7 
09-ZC·269-1 
II-LB-269-1 
20 I O-DJ-BX-0403 

N/A 

33,005 
30,118 
2,167 
3.885 

26,110 

70,812 

172,137 

STP·9045-o0 (00 I) 
STP-905S-OO (OOW 
NHs-DOlO-OI(13W 

12-TA-269-1 
13-OP-269-1 

3,249 
92S,706 
311,212 

80,605 
28,332 

1,349,104 

N/A 26,242 

26,242 

FEMA-4081-DR·MS 
DR-1604-0176-MS 

3.464 
136,121 

IO-LE-I 66 

S 

6,800 

146,385 

4,274,261 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
PORTING AA'D ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WlTH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Jmte 3,2014 

To:the Mayor and City Council 
Ci' of D'Iberville, Mississippi 

W 	 have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
erica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 

iss ed by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
ac . vities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Ci1!Y of D'Iberville, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to 
thd financial statements, which collectively comprise City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 3, 2014. ' 

In erna} Control over Financial Reporting 

In lanning and performing our audit of the fmancial statements, we considered City of D'Iberville, 
Mi sissippi's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
th are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statments, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of D'Iberville, 
Mi sissippi's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
D' erville, Mississippi's internal control. 

o i consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 

si 	 ificant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we 
tified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and 

significant deficiencies. 

A iJejiciency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
mahagement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
de I ct and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of eficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of e entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We 
co sider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be 
rna erial weaknesses. 2013-1 and 2013-4 . 

95 



I 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, pr a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with I 
governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompany schedule of findings and 
questioned costs to be significant deficiencies. 2013-2 and 2013-3. 

Compliance and Other Matters I 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's fmancial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a I 
direct and material effect on the determination of fmancial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other I 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-1 and 2013-3. ICity ofD'Iberville, Mississippi's Response to Findings 

City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's response was Inot subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with I 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 

~~this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. .
I 

IWright, Ward, Hatten & Guel, PLLC 
Gulfport, Mississippi 

-
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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EPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 .. 
To the Mayor and City Council 
Ci of D'Iberville, Mississippi 

ort on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

have audited City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
'bed in the OMB Circular A-I33 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect 

ach of City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 
3. City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's 
Its section of the accompanying schedule of fmdings and questioned costs. 

agement's Responsibility 

agement is' responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
gra ts applicable to its federal programs. 

responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's 
rna or federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
co ucted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
Sta es of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Sta dards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
Sta es, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
req ire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance. 

the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of 
erville, Mississippi's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
onsidered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
fed ral program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of D'Iberville, 
Mi issippi's compliance. 

Opz ion on Each Major Federal Program 

In UT opinion, City of D'Iberville, Mississippi, complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
co pliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
rnaj T federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2013. 

wit 
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I 
Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be I 
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs as item 2013-5. Our opinion on each major federal program is not 
modified with respect to these matters. I 
City of D'Therville, Mississippi's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying auditee corrective action plan. City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's response 
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we I 
express no opinion on the response. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance I 
Management of City of D'Iberville, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning 
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's internal control 
over compliance with the types ofrequirernents that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on Iinternal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of D'Iberville, Mississippi's internal control over Icompliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned I
functions, to prevent, or detect and 'correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a Ireasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material I 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. IOur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, I 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our Itesting of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

fj)....u tJ...J.1J..1t.., k I 
Wright, Ward Batten & Guel, PLLC IGulfport, Mississippi 
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M yor and City COlmcil

• 	 Ci of D'Iberville, Mississippi 

,? 	
W have audited the basic fmancial statements of the City of D'Iberville, Mississippi as of and for the.. 	 ye r ended September 30, 2013 and have issued our report dated June 3, 2014. We have conducted our 
au it in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
st dards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. 

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, we 
ha e also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations. However, 
pr viding an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was not an objective of our audit and, 
ac ordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

results of our procedures performed to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations and our 
it of the financial statements disclosed instances of noncompliance described in Findings 2013-1 and 

20 3-3 in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

• 	 instance of noncompliance of the prior year have been corrected by management unless it IS 

ifically stated otherwise in the findings and recommendations noted above. 

Office of the State Auditor or a public accounting firm will review, on a subsequent year's audit 
agement, the finding in this report to ensure that corrective action has been taken. 

report is intended for the information of the City's management and the Office of the State Auditor 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, 
report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

W ·ght, Ward, Hatten & Guel, PLLC 
Gu fport, Mississippi 

RECEIVED 
DEC 0 5 20~ 

• 

MICHAEL E 

SANDE W. 

JENNIFER 
DEBORAH ( 

LEAH HOL 
CHARLENE 
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• CITY OF D'mERVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

nON I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

• 	 T e of Auditors' Report Issued 

al Control over Financial Reporting: 

, Ma erial weakness( es) identified 
Si . ificant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be 
ma~al weaknesses? 

I 

NoJcompliance material to fmandal statements noted? 

• Fe~eral Awards 

T e of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: 


al control over major programs: 


Ma erial weakness(es) identified? 

Si ificant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be 

mat rial weaknesses? 


Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
repqrted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, 
Section .510(a)? 

! 
Identification ofmajor programs: 

AgencylProgram Title 
Community Development Block Grant­
Entitlement Grant 

ARRA -Department ofTransportation ­
Highway Planning & Construction Grant 

Department ofTransportation - Highway 
Planning & Construction Grant 

U. S. Department of Homeland Security­
Hazard Mitigation Grant 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 

AuJtee qualified as low risk auditee? 

Prio~ fiscal year audit finding(s) and questioned costs relative to 
fed' I awards which would require the auditee to prepare 
a su 
in S 

:if 

schedule ofprior audit findings as discussed 
ction 315(b) ofOMB Circular A-133? 

Unqualified 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Unqualified 

No 

Yes 

Yes 

$300,000 

No 

No 

L 
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I 
SECTION n - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

2013-1: Privilege Licenses Prior year finding 

Criteria I 
All businesses located within the City limits should be operating with a valid business license that 
is renewed annually. I 
Condition 

During our testing of privilege licenses, we noted that some businesses located within the City I 
limits did not have a current business license. In one instance, a business had not renewed their 
privilege license in two years. I 
Personnel in this department were not reviewing expired privilege license reports on a consistent I
basis. They also were not adequately following up on past due notices that were sent to 
businesses for non-renewal. 

I 
Noncompliant businesses are in violation of the City's ordinance and state law. This creates a Ishortfall ofprivilege revenue because some businesses have not renewed their privilege license. 

It can also create inaccurate budgetary forecasting for this revenue type. I 
Recommendation 

We recommend management ensures that all businesses operating within the City have a valid I 
privilege license. Personnel should actively review the expired privilege license report for 
businesses that have not renewed their license on a monthly basis and pursue collection of this 
revenue. I 
We also recommend that adequate procedures be established and documented regarding the 
billing and collection of privilege licenses and that all employees within this department are Iproperly trained regarding these procedures. 

2013-2: Building Permits I 
Criteria 


Building permit fees charged for services should be consistent with the City ordinance. 
 I 
Condition I 
During our testing of building permits, we noted that permit fees in the Incade software program 
and charged to citizens did not agree to the fee schedule adopted by the City Council. 

I 
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.. 
City personnel input the fees adopted by the City Council incorrectly into the Incode software 
program. 

Building permit fees were incorrectly charged to citizens because of this error. 

Recommendation 

2013 


Upon discovery, City personnel corrected this in the Incode software program immediately. We 
recommend in the future, if any fee schedule changes are made to the software program, tests are 
performed to ensure that fees are correctly charged in accordance with City ordinance. 

3: Court Fine Revenue and Receivables 

Criteria 

Court fine revenue and related assessments should be correctly charged to each citation. The 
Court fine receivables report should include all court fme monies due to the City. 


Condition 


During our testing of court fine revenue, we noted that the court fine receivables report that was 
generated on September 30, 2013 did not include all court fme receivables due to the City at that 
time. 

2013 


Court personnel did not include all active cases in the report parameters when generating the 
court fine receivables amounts due at year end. 

The financial reports can be misstated by failure to include all court fine receivables due to the 
City. 

Recommendation 

We also recommend that procedures are implemented to ensure that the court fme receivables 
report is generated with the correct report parameters to comprise all court fine receivables due 
the City for accurate financial presentation. 

4: Utility Billings and Receivables Prior yearfinding 

Criteria 

The City should make efforts to collect for all utility services that it provides to the citizens of the 
City and other parties. 
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During our testing of utility receivables, we noted that several accounts have past due amounts 
and are still receiving service. Upon further investigation, it was noted that these accounts were 
Jackson County residents who are receiving garbage and/or sewer services provided by the City. 
The City pays for the costs of these services through Harrison County Utility Authority. Because 
it is a sanitation issue, the City cannot disconnect or discontinue service. The accounts 
receivable amount for utility accounts has increased approximately $50,000 from the prior year. I 

IThe City has not entered into an agreement with Jackson County to ensure collection for the 
services that are billed to these residents of Jackson County who are receiving services provided 
by the City of D'Iberville. The residents may be aware that their service will not be discontinued 
or disconnected, so therefore, they may not be inclined to pay and some residents haven't made 
payments in several years. 

This situation causes the utility accounts receivable to increase and allows these citizens to 
receive services with no repercussions for nonpayment. The City is also incurring the expenditure 
for solid waste and sewer services with no offsetting revenue received for the citizens who are not 
paying. 

I: , 
Recommendation 

We recommend that the City communicate with the proper individuals and investigate all options 
regarding the transferring of these services to Jackson County for those residents and to collect all d 
monies due on those accounts. 

SECTION ill - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

2013-5: Department of Transportation - Highway Planning & Construction Grant - CFDA #20.205 

Allowable Costs 

Criteria 

All costs charged to the federal program should be allowable costs in accordance with the grant 
compliance requirements and should adhere to the scope of work and related fees set forth in the 
professional contract. 

Condition 

During our testing of the above mentioned federal program, we noted that unallowed personnel 
costs for engineering services were charged to the grant program. These costs were inadvertently 
reimbursed by the granting agency. 

I 
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• The engmeering firm improperly billed for personnel services and City personnel did not realize 
that the charges were not allowed under the grant program. 

• Questioned Costs 

The amount of questioned costs associated with this finding is $2,569. 

The City is noncompliant with the federal grant program compliance requirements associated 
with allowable costs. The City could owe this money back to the federal granting agency. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that management implement policies and procedures to ensure that all federal 
program grant compliance requirements are adhered to. Communication of grant compliance 
requirements should be made to all City employees and outside independent parties responsible 
for oversight on federally funded projects. We recommend that management contact the granting 
agency on this project to expedite the correction of these unallowed costs. 

• 

.. 
• 

-
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For the Year Ended September 30,2013 

Wri t, Ward, Hatten & Guel, PLLC 
P.D Box 129 

Gul~ort, Mississippi 39502 


Gentlemen: 

The' ity of D'Iberville, Mississippi respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the year 
end d September 30, 2013. 

ndings from the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs are discussed below. The findings are 
ered consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule. 

Section 2: Financial Statement Findings 

Finding 2013-1: Privilege Licenses 

. g our testing of privilege licenses, we noted that some businesses located within the City limits 
d d not have a current business license. In one instance, a business had not renewed their privilege 
Ii 'ense in two years. 

Cbrrective Action , 

~e responsibility ofprivilege license renewal has recently been re-assigned to another employee in an 
a1jtempt to gain better control of this situation. She has held a meeting to devise a plan to ensure that 
a new businesses obtain a privilege license. She is currently drafting a checklist that each department 

11 initial before utilities are connected. In addition, she will review expired privilege licenses 
nthly and pursue collection. The fire department has also been checking privilege licenses during 

it annual business inspections to ensure that the businesses hold a current license. 

2013, 2: Building Permits 

~ndition 

our testing of building permits, we noted that permit fees in the Incode software program and 
to citizens did not agree to the fee schedule adopted by the City Council. 
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Corrective Action 


The City will perform accuracy checks as fee schedule changes are made in the future. 


2013-3: Court Fine Revenue and Receivables I 
Condition 

IDuring our testing of court fine revenue, we noted that the court fine receivables report that was 
generated on September 30, 2013 did not include all court fine receivables due to the City at that time. 

Corrective Action I 
The City will ensure that the court fine receivables report will be generated at the end of the fiscal year 

with the correct parameters in the future. 
 I 

Finding 2013-4: Utility Billings and Receivables 

Condition 

During our testing of utility receivables, we noted that several accounts have past due amounts and are 

still receiving service. Upon further investigation, it was noted that these accounts were Jackson 

County residents who are receiving garbage and/or sewer services provided by the City. The City pays 

for the costs of these services through Harrison County Utility Authority. Because it is a sanitation 

issue, the City cannot disconnect or discontinue service. The accounts receivable amount for utility 

accounts has increased approximately $50,000 from the prior year. 


Corrective Action 

The City is currently working on an agreement with West Jackson County to collect for the sewer 

services in that area. Under the proposed agreement, the City will bill West Jackson County who will 

then be responsible for collecting from its residents. The City is pursuing our legal options for the past 

due balances on these accounts as well. 


Finding 2013-5: 	Department of Transportation - Highway Planning & Construction Grant ­
CFDA #20.205 


Condition 

During our testirig of the above mentioned federal program, we noted that unallowed personnel costs 

for engineering services were charged to the grant program. These costs were inadvertently 

reimbursed by the granting agency. 


Corrective Action I 
The City has begun the forgiveness process with the Mississippi Department of Transportation related 
to these disallowed costs. If we are not successful in having these costs allowed by MDOT, we will 
recover the money from the engineering firm. We have communicated with the engineering firm the 
importance ofproperly billing for personnel in order to avoid this problem in the future. 
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THE CITY OF D'ffiERVlLLE, MISSISSIPPI 

SUMMARY OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
.. "FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Thte were no prior audit findings relative to federal awards . 

• 
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